
1 
 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MONDAY, JULY 20, 2020 
7:30 P.M. 

 
Virtual Meeting 

 

AGENDA 
 
OPENING PRAYER: 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
ROLL CALL: 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF JULY 6, 2020: 
 

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

1. Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose. 
2. Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak. 
3. When recognized, give your name and address and direct your comments and/or questions to any 

City official in attendance. 
4. Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one 

opportunity of up to four (4) minutes duration during the first occasion for citizen comments and 
questions.  Each person shall also be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration 
during the last occasion provided for citizen comments and questions and one opportunity of up to 
three (3) minutes duration during each public hearing.  Comments made during public hearings shall 
be relevant to the subject for which the public hearings are held. 

5. In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or 
her by the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose 
such questions. 

 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
1. Rezoning – 425 & 429 Hamblin Street.  Conduct a public hearing to receive citizen comment 

regarding the request to rezone the property 425 & 429 Hamblin Street from R-2, Two Family 
Residential District, to I-1, Light Industrial District. 
 

2. Rezoning - N. Washington Street.  Conduct a public hearing to receive citizen comment regarding the 
request to rezone the property on North Washington Street from RM-1, Multiple Family Residential 
District – Low Rise, to RM-1, Multiple Family Residential District – Low Rise with Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) overlay. 
 

3. Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate - 300 W. Main Street.  Conduct a public 
hearing to receive citizen comment regarding the application from Owosso REI Group, LLC for an 
Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for their property at 300 W. Main Street. 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 



2 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Boards and Commissions Appointment.  Approve the following Mayoral Boards and Commissions 

appointment: 
 

Name Board/Commission Term Expires 
Thomas Taylor* Planning Commission 06-30-2023 

 * Indicates reappointment 
 
2. Midwest Brass & Gas Car Parking Permission.  Approve the application from the Midwest Brass & 

Gas for use of a portion of the southwest corner of the Comstock Parking Lot from 9:00 am on August 
16, 2020 until 6:00 pm August 21, 2020 to park trucks and trailers associated with the group’s tour of 
Shiawassee County, and authorize Traffic Control Order No. 1436 formalizing the action. 
 

3. OMS/DDA RLF Loan Funding Approval – Apple Tree Lane.  Approve the application from 
The Bake Shop and Coffee House, Inc. dba Apple Tree Lane/Wooden Crate Popo requesting a loan 
from the OMS/DDA Revolving Loan Fund in the amount of $25,000.00 for expansion of their business 
at 207 N. Washington Street. 
 

4. Warrant No. 586.  Authorize Warrant No. 586 as follows: 
 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 
Caledonia Charter 
Township 

Caledonia Utility Fund payment- 
4/1/20-6/30/20 

Water $31,190.25 

Owosso Charter 
Township 

Owosso Charter Township 2011 Water 
Agreement payment-4/1/20 - 6/30/20 

Water $13,693.96 

Gould Law PC Professional services-6/14/20-7/13/20 General $13,720.20 
 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
1. Waiver of Penalty Fees - Property Transfer Affidavit.  Consider approval of a resolution authorizing 

the waiver of late fees for Property Transfer Affidavits filed outside the 45-day requirement. 
 
2. First Responder Hazard Pay Premiums Program Application.  Consider application to the State of 

Michigan for First Responder Hazard Pay Premiums Program funds and authorize a $1,000.00 
payment to each of the 35 Police and Fire/EMS employees by September 30, 2020. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
1. N. Bradley Hissong, Building Official.  June 2020 Building Department Report. 
2. N. Bradley Hissong Building Official.  June 2020 Code Violations Report. 
3. N. Bradley Hissong Building Official.  June 2020 Inspection Report. 
4. N. Bradley Hissong Building Official.  June 2020 Certificates Issued Report. 
5. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  June 2020 Police Report. 
6. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  June 2020 Fire Report. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, August 03, 2020 
 



3 
 

 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority – County Representative – term expires 06-30-2020 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2022 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2021 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority – term expires June 30, 2022 
Historical Commission – 2 terms expire December 31, 2020 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio recordings of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals 
with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by 
writing, calling, or emailing the following:  Owosso City Clerk’s Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  
48867; Phone: (989) 725-0500; Email:  city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. The City of Owosso Website address 
is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  
   

http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/


Draft 1 07-06-2020 

CITY OF OWOSSO  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF JULY 6, 2020        
7:30 P.M. 

 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER:  MAYOR CHRISTOPHER T. EVELETH 
 
OPENING PRAYER:  COUNCILMEMBER NICHOLAS L. PIDEK 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: MAYOR CHRISTOPHER T. EVELETH 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Christopher T. Eveleth, Mayor Pro-Tem Susan J. Osika, 

Councilmembers Loreen F. Bailey, Janae L. Fear, Jerome C. Haber, 
Daniel A. Law, and Nicholas L. Pidek. 

 
ABSENT: None. 
 

APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF JUNE 15, 2020 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 15, 2020 as 
presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Haber and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
Sanitary Sewer Inflows & Infiltration  
 
City Manager Nathan R. Henne gave a presentation regarding the City’s issues with sanitary sewer 
inflows and infiltration.  The City currently experiences at least one sanitary sewer overflow per year.  The 
standard set by EGLE allows for one overflow every 10 years, hence the City is under an administrative 
consent order to control said overflows.  Over the course of the last several years the City has worked to 
improve infrastructure and remedy as much of the problem as possible.  The ultimate solution will be a 
multipronged approach that includes the removal of sources of infiltration, construction of a storage tank, 
and improvements/expansion of the WWTP.  City Manager Henne went on to say that the next steps will 
be challenging as they will involve private properties and could prove to be costly, but work needs to 
continue so the City can get out from under the consent order. 
 
Council agreed the next step should involve the collection of information on where there are illicit 
connections to the system, the cost of different storage options, and a possible point-of-sale ordinance 
requiring the correction of illicit connections at the time a home is sold. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
None. 
 



Draft 2 07-06-2020 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Lorraine Austin, Executive Director of the Friends of the Shiawassee River, thanked the City Manager for 
putting together this evening’s presentation.  She said the overflows are a real problem and there are no 
easy answers, but the group would like to work in tandem with the City on the issue as they have the 
same goals.  She also announced that the annual river clean-up would be taking place July 25th – August 
2nd. 
 
Mayor Eveleth welcomed everyone back for the first in-person meeting in quite some time, though he 
warned that the next meeting may have to be held on Zoom. 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
City Manager Henne detailed the latest Project Status Report for the Council. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Osika asked for a status report on the Matthews Building. 
Councilmember Pidek said he would like to explore alternative means of communication with residents 
such as text messaging or a Twitter account. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Osika noted that Amy Fuller is doing a great job on Facebook. 
 
Councilmember Law said he would like to see an alternative route established via email. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey  to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 
First Reading and Set Public Hearing – Rezoning 715 S. Washington Street.  Conduct first reading 
and set a public hearing for Monday, August 3, 2020 at 7:30 p.m. for the purpose of receiving citizen 
comment regarding the proposal to rezone the property located at 715 S. Washington Street from R-2 
Two-Family Residential District to B-1 Local Business District as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 99-2020 
 

TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AMENDING CHAPTER 38 ZONING  
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES  

TO REZONE THE PARCEL AT 715 S WASHINGTON STREET AND AMEND THE ZONING MAP 
 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Owosso received a petition from Josh Willard, Josh’s Frogs, at 
the real property identified as 715 S. Washington Street, parcel number 050-651-032-001-00 to rezone 
the parcel from R-2 Two-Family Residential District to B-1 Local Business District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the planning commission subsequently published the request and mailed notices of the 
request to surrounding property owners, held a public hearing on the request, and deliberated on the 
request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city staff and planning commission recommend, without reservations or conditions, the 
rezoning of 715 S. Washington Street as petitioned; and 
 
WHEREAS, the item must now be considered by the city council and a public hearing by the council is 
required before any such ordinance amendment can be acted upon. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS: 
 



Draft 3 07-06-2020 

SECTION 1.    OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AMENDMENT. That Chapter 38, Zoning, Sec. 38-27, Zoning 
Districts and Map, reflect the following change, to be noted on the official map and filed with the city clerk: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Parcel 
numb
er:
 

050-651-032-001-00  
Legal/Tax Description: LOTS 5 6 7 8 9 & 10 (EX N 20' OF LOTS 5 & 6 & ALLEY ABUTTING SD 

LOTS 5 & 6) BLK 32 A L WILLIAMS ADD 
    
SECTION 2.  PUBLIC HEARING. A public hearing is set for Monday, August 3, 2020 at 7:30 p.m. for the 
purpose of hearing citizen comment regarding the proposed ordinance amendment. 
 
SECTION 3.  NOTICE. Council hereby directs staff to supply a public notice concerning the rezoning to a 
newspaper of general circulation within the city. 
 
SECTION 4. AVAILABILITY. This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk's office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
 
SECTION 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE. This amendment shall become effective twenty days after passage. 
 
 
First Reading and Set Public Hearing – Retirement Ordinance Amendment.  Conduct first reading 
and set a public hearing for Monday, August 3, 2020 at 7:30 p.m. for the purpose of receiving citizen 
comment regarding the proposed amendment to Chapter 2, Administration, Article VII, Municipal 
Employees’ Pensions, to transfer authority from the Retirement Board to MERS as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 100-2020 
 

SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, 

ARTICLE VII, MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES' PENSIONS 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan has an independent pension system 
covering a portion of its employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has transferred custody and administration of the system to the Municipal 
Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan; and  
 
WHEREAS, the ordinance governing the pension system must be amended to reflect said changes; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing shall be scheduled to receive citizen comment regarding the amendments. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  That Chapter 2, Administration, Article VII, Municipal Employees’ Pensions, 
Section 2-401, Name and establishment shall be amended as follows: 
 
Sec. 2-401. - Name and establishment.  
 

Parcel Address     Current Zoning Amended Zoning 

715 S. 
Washington 
Street described 
as follows: 

R-2 Two-Family 
Residential District 

B-1 Local Business District 



Draft 4 07-06-2020 

(a) The city employees' retirement system, hereinafter called the "retirement system," is hereby 
established for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and survivor benefits for the 
employees of the city and their eligible dependents. The retirement system shall be maintained 
for the exclusive benefit of members and is intended to comply with the requirements of section 
457(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time (the "code"), with the 
requirements of any regulations issued thereunder, and with the requirements of any other 
applicable law. The trustees of the trust established as part of this retirement system are defined 
in section 2-403. 

 
In accordance with the terms of the retirement system, the trustees have the ability at any time, and 

from time to time, to amend the retirement system.  
 
To be administered effective December 31, 2005, this retirement system is amended and restated in 

its entirety to comply with the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended by the 
Uruguay Round Agreements Act, the Small Business Job Protection Act of 1996, the Taxpayer Relief Act 
of 1997, the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1996, the Internal 
Revenue Service Restructuring and Reform Act of 1998, the Community Renewal Tax Relief Act of 2000, 
the Economic Growth and Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2001 and all applicable rulings and regulations 
issued thereunder.  

 
1.(b) As of June 1, 2020, or as soon thereafter as the transfer to the Michigan   

Employee Retirement System ("MERS") of all assets takes place, the Board of Trustees   
established by the aforesaid Chapter 2, Article VII, Section 2-403, as amended, and now 
existing pursuant  thereto shall cease to exist. The previous authority to administer the 
retirement system  established by this chapter for all active City employees and City 
retirees, both past and future, and all other active employees previously  covered by this 
ordinance will be administrated and managed by MERS effective June 1, 2020. Any 
reference in this ordinance to the duties of the Board of Trustees shall be performed by 
MERS. 

 
(c) The balance of the assets currently held by the Trustees belonging to the City of   

Owosso Retirement System established by the aforesaid Chapter 2, Article VII, as 
amended, shall be transferred to MERS on or before June 1, 2020,  but remain the assets 
of the City of Owosso Retirement  System and shall be administered by MERS as 
established under this chapter. When transferred, MERS shall credit said assets to the 
various funds and accounts provided  for in this chapter, according to the purpose for 
which such assets were held and   
credited in the retirement system created under the aforesaid Chapter 2, Article VII, as 
amended. 

 
SECTION 2.  ADDITION.  That the definition for MERS shall be added to Chapter 2, Administration, 
Article VII, Municipal Employees’ Pensions, Section 2-402, Definitions as follows: 
 

MERS means Municipal Employee Retirement System. The Municipal Employees’ Retirement 
System of Michigan is an independent, professional retirement services company that administers 
the retirement plans for Michigan’s local units of government on a not-for-profit basis. 
 
SECTION 3.  REPEAL & REPLACE.  That Chapter 2, Administration, Article VII, Municipal Employees’ 
Pensions, Section 2-403, Board of Trustees, be repealed in its entirety and restated as follows: 
 
Sec. 2-403. - Board of trustees.  
 
 (a)  There is hereby created a board of trustees (the "board") in whom is vested the general 

administration, management, and responsibility for the proper operation of the retirement system and 
for making effective the provisions of this article. The board shall consist of seven (7) trustees as 
follows:  



Draft 5 07-06-2020 

(1)  The mayor or a councilman who is not eligible to participate in the retirement system as a 
member or retirant;  

(2)  A second councilman who is not eligible to participate in the retirement system as a member or 
retirant;  

(3)  A citizen who has the qualifications required by the Charter for holding an elective city office 
and who is not eligible to participate in the retirement system as a member or retirant, to be 
appointed by the council;  

(4)  A police officer member to be chosen by the police officer members;  
(5)  A firefighter member to be chosen by the firefighter members; and  
(6)  Two (2) general city members: One (1) general city member to be chosen by non-unionized 

general city members and one (1) general city member to be chosen by the unionized general 
city members.  

(7)  If there are no active members of the employee groups listed in subsections (4), (5) and (6) 
above able or willing to serve, a retired member of the group may be elected by active and 
retired members of such group.  

(b)  The choosing of the trustees provided for in paragraphs (4), (5), and (6), above, shall be held in the 
month of May in each year under such rules and regulations as the board shall, from time to time, 
adopt.  

 
(a) The City established, with the creation of the City Pension, a board of trustees (the 

“board”) in whom was vested the general administration, management, and responsibility 
for the proper operation of the retirement. 

1) The MERS shall have the responsibility for the general administration and 
management of the system, and for making effective and construing the 
provisions of this chapter. It shall have the power to negotiate and execute legal 
documents provided that any such legal document be approved by the City. 

2) The City Board Trustees shall cease to exist as of June 1, 2020, or as soon 
thereafter as all of the assets are transferred to MERS, as provided herein. 
Thereafter the aforementioned date or condition, any reference of the “board” 
hereinafter shall be construed to be MERS. 

 
SECTION 4.  REPEAL.  That Sections 2-404 through 2-408 of Chapter 2, Administration, Article VII, 
Municipal Employees’ Pensions, be repealed in their entirety. 
 
Sec. 2-404. - Trustees' terms of office-oath.  
 

The regular term of office of the trustees provided for in subsections 2-403(a)(3), (4), (5), and (6) 
shall be for four (4) years. The term of office shall expire at the end of each four (4) year period 
subsequent to July 1, 1965, for the police officer member Trustee; July 1, 1966, for the first general city 
member trustee; July 1, 1967, for the fire fighter member trustee; and July 1, 1968 for the second general 
city member trustee. The citizen (non-employee) trustee shall serve at the pleasure of the council. Each 
trustee shall, within ten (10) days after trustee has been appointed or chosen, as the case may be, take 
the oath of office which shall be administered by the city clerk.  

 
Sec. 2-405. - Vacancy on board—How filled.  

 
If a vacancy occurs on the board, the vacancy shall be filled, within sixty (60) days from and after the 

date of the vacancy, in the same manner as required for making appointments or choices to position of 
trustee.  
 
Sec. 2-406. - Board meetings.  

 
The board shall hold meetings regularly, at least one (1) in each quarter in each year, and shall 

designate the time and place thereof, by rule. The board shall adopt its own rules of procedure and shall 
keep a record of its proceedings. Such rules shall become effective when a copy thereof is filed with the 



Draft 6 07-06-2020 

city clerk. A copy of such rules shall also be placed in the Owosso Public Library. All meetings of the 
board shall be public. The trustees shall serve without compensation for their service as such.  
 
Sec. 2-407. - Quorum—Each trustee entitled to vote.  

 
Five (5) trustees shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the board. Each trustee shall be entitled 

to one (1) vote on each question before the board, at least five (5) concurring votes shall be necessary for 
a decision by the trustees.  
 
Sec. 2-408. - Retirement system officers.  
 
(a)  The officers of the board shall be a chairman and a vice-chairman, elected by the board from the 

current trustees.  
 
(b)  The city clerk shall serve as secretary to the board, and the city clerk shall be the administrative 

officer of the retirement system.  
 
(c)  The city treasurer shall be treasurer of the retirement system and the custodian of its assets. All 

payments from moneys of the retirement system shall be made by the city treasurer according to 
charter provisions and any ordinance relating thereto which is adopted by the council. No payment 
shall be made unless it shall have been previously authorized by a specific or continuing resolution 
of the board.  

 
(d)  The board shall appoint an actuary who shall be the technical advisor to the board on matters 

regarding the operation of the retirement system, and the actuary chosen shall perform such other 
duties as are required of the actuary under this article.  

 
(e)  The board shall appoint as medical director a physician who is not eligible to participate in the 

retirement system as a member or retirant. The medical director shall be responsible to and shall 
hold office at the pleasure of the board. The medical director shall arrange for and pass upon all 
medical examinations required under this article.  

 
The medical director shall investigate all essential statements and certificates of a medical nature made 
by or on behalf of a member or retirant, and the medical director shall report in writing to the board the 
conclusions on medical matters referred to the medical director by the board.  
 
(f)  The board may employ such professional and other services as are required for the proper operation 

of the retirement system. The compensation for such services shall be fixed by the board subject to 
the approval of the council.  

 
(g)  The city attorney shall be the legal advisor to the board. A copy of all written opinions rendered by 

the city attorney to the board shall be filed with the city clerk.  
 
SECTION 5.  REPLACE.  That references to the “board” be replaced with “MERS” in Sections 2-409, 2-
414, and 2-432 through 2-435 as follows: 
 
Sec. 2-409. - Records of retirement system—Annual report.  
 
(a)  The city clerk shall keep, or cause to be kept, in convenient form, such data as shall be necessary 

for an actuarial valuation of the assets and liabilities of the retirement system. The board MERS shall 
render a report to the city manager and the council or their designee within ninety (90) days after the 
close of each fiscal year of the city showing the fiscal transactions of the retirement system for the 
year ending the preceding June 30, and the last balance sheet showing the financial condition of the 
retirement system by means of an actuarial valuation of the assets and liabilities of the retirement 
system.  

 



Draft 7 07-06-2020 

(b)  The board shall from time to time adopt such mortality, service, and other tables of experience, and 
a rate or rates of regular interest, as are necessary to maintain the operation of the retirement 
system on an actuarial basis.  

 
Sec. 2-414. - Eligible domestic relations orders.  
 

An eligible domestic relations order ("EDRO") is a signed domestic relations order issued by a state 
court which creates, recognizes or assigns to an alternate payee(s) the right to receive all or part of a 
member's retirement system benefit that is or will become payable to the member. An alternate payee is a 
spouse, former spouse, child, or other dependent of a member who is treated as a beneficiary under the 
retirement system as a result of the EDRO. The board may establish EDRO procedures, but in the 
absence of such procedures, the board will determine if a domestic relations order is an EDRO in 
accordance with the following:  

 
(1)  Board of trustees' MERS determination: Promptly upon receipt of a domestic relations order, 

the board will notify the participant and any alternate payee(s) named in the order of such 
receipt and will include a copy of this section. Within a reasonable time after receipt of the order, 
the board will make a determination as to whether or not the order is a EDRO as defined in 
MCL 38.1701 et seq. and will promptly notify the member and any alternate payee(s) in writing 
of the determination. If the order is determined to be an EDRO, the retirement system shall 
begin the payment of the benefit with the next monthly payment or upon retirement of the 
participant.  

 
(2)  Specific requirements of an EDRO: In order for a domestic relations order to be an EDRO, it 

must specifically state all of the following:  
 
a.  The name, last known mailing address (if any) and the social security number of the 

member and each alternate payee(s) covered by the order;  
b.  The dollar amount or percentage of the benefit to be paid to each alternate payee, or the 

manner in which the amount or percentage is to be determined;  
c.  The number of payments or period to which such order applies; and  
d.  The name of the plan to which the order applies.  
 
The domestic relations order will not be deemed an EDRO if it requires the retirement system to 
provide any type or form of benefit, or any option not already provided for in the retirement 
system, or increased benefits determined on the basis of the actuarial value, or benefits in 
excess of the member's retirement system benefit, or payment of benefits to an alternate 
payee(s) required to be paid to another alternate payee under another EDRO.  

 
(3)  Disputed orders: If there is a question as to whether or not a domestic relations order is a 

EDRO, there will be a delay in any payout to any payee(s) including the member, until the 
status is resolved. If the retirement system determines that the order is not an EDRO, the 
retirement system shall promptly notify the alternate payee(s) of this determination. The 
notification shall specify the reasons the order was not determined to be an EDRO. This 
determination does not prohibit the alternate payee(s) or the court from filing an amended order 
with the retirement system for redetermination.  

 
(4)  Death of alternate payee(s): If an alternate payee(s) dies before receiving any payment of a 

benefit pursuant to an EDRO, that interest reverts to the member.  
 
Sec. 2-432. - Expense fund.  

The expense fund shall be the fund to which shall be credited all money provided by the city to pay 
the administration expense of the retirement system, and from which shall be paid all expenses 
necessary in connection with the administration of the retirement system. The board MERS shall, 
annually, certify to the council, according to budget procedure, the amount of appropriation necessary to 



Draft 8 07-06-2020 

administer the retirement system during the ensuing fiscal year. The council shall appropriate such 
amount to the credit of the expense fund.  
 
Sec. 2-433. - Investment of assets.  
 
(a)  The board MERS shall be the trustees of the assets of the retirement system, which shall be 

invested in a trust. The trustees shall have full power to invest and reinvest such assets subject to 
the provisions of Act No. 314 of the Public Acts of 1965, as amended, and as it might from time to 
time be amended or replaced by successor acts.  

 
(b)  The board MERS shall have full power to hold, purchase, sell, assign, transfer, and dispose of any 

investments in which any of the moneys of the retirement system have been invested as well as the 
proceeds of such investments and any moneys belonging to the system. There shall be kept on 
deposit available cash not exceeding five (5) percent of the total assets of the retirement system. 
The trustees shall ensure that all investments, amounts, property and rights held under the trust fund 
are held for the exclusive benefit of members and their beneficiaries. The trust fund shall be held in 
trust pursuant to the trust agreement for the exclusive benefit of members and their beneficiaries and 
defraying reasonable expenses of the retirement system and of the trust fund. It shall be impossible, 
prior to the satisfaction of all liabilities with respect to members and their beneficiaries, for any part of 
the assets and income of the trust fund to be used for, or diverted to, purposes other than for the 
exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries.  

 
(c)  The description of the various funds of the retirement system shall be interpreted to refer to the 

accounting records of the retirement system and not to the segregation of assets in the funds of the 
retirement system.  

 
Sec. 2-434. - Income fund; crediting of regular interest.  
 
(a)  The income fund shall be the fund to which shall be credited all regular interest, dividends and other 

income derived from investments of the retirement system, all gifts and bequests received by the 
system, all unclaimed accumulated contributions as provided in this article, and all other moneys 
received by the retirement system the disposition of which is not specifically provided in this article. 
There shall be transferred from the income fund all amounts required to credit regular interest to the 
members savings fund, retirement reserve fund and pension reserve fund, as provided in this article. 
Whenever the board determines the balance in the income fund is more than sufficient to cover 
current charges to the fund such excess, or any part thereof, may be used to provide contingency 
reserves or to meet special requirements of the other funds of the retirement system. Whenever the 
balance in the income fund is insufficient to meet the charges to the fund the amount of the 
insufficiency shall be transferred from the pension reserve fund to the income fund. A member's 
accumulated contributions transferred from the members savings fund to the income fund may be 
paid from the income fund upon claim for same approved by the boardMERS.  

 
(b)  The board MERS shall, at the end of each fiscal year, allow and credit regular interest on the 

members' individual balances in the members savings fund, computed on the individual balances at 
the beginning of the fiscal year; and on the mean balances during the fiscal year in the pension 
reserve fund and retirement reserve fund.  

 
Sec. 2-435. - Assignments prohibited.  

 
The right of a person to a pension, to the return of accumulated contributions, the pension itself, any 

option benefit, any other right accrued or accruing to any person under the provisions of this article, and 
any moneys belonging to the retirement system shall not be subject to execution, garnishment, 
attachment, the operation of bankruptcy or insolvency law, or any other process of law whatsoever, and 
shall be unassignable, except as is specifically provided in this article. If a member is covered by a group 
insurance or prepayment plan participated in by the city, and should member be permitted to, and elect 
to, continue such coverage as a retirant, member may authorize the board MERS to have deducted from 



Draft 9 07-06-2020 

member's pension the payments required of member to continue coverage under such group insurance 
or prepayment plan. The city shall have the right of set off for any claim arising from embezzlement by or 
fraud of a member, retirant or beneficiary.  
 
SECTION 6.  PUBLIC HEARING.  A public hearing is set for Monday, August 3, 2020 at 7:30 p.m. for the 
purpose of hearing citizen comment regarding the proposed amendments to Chapter 2, Administration, of 
the Code of the City of Owosso. 
 
SECTION 7. AVAILABILITY. This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk's office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
     
SECTION 8.  EFFECTIVE DATE. This amendment shall become effective 20 days after approval. 
  
 
Boards and Commissions Appointment.  Approve the following Mayoral Boards and Commissions 
appointment: 
 

Name Board/Commission Term Expires 

Tad Morris 
Planning Commission 
filling unexpired term of B. Kirkland 

06-30-2023 

 
 
Change Order - Public Safety Vehicle Equipment Changeover.  Approve Change Order No. 1 to the 
contract with Mid Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales and Service L.L.C. for the removal, supply, and 
installation of public safety equipment in the new police utility vehicle in the amount of $1,351.00, for an 
additional light bar and further authorize payment to the vendor as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 101-2020 
  

AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NO. 1  
 THE CONTRACT FOR VEHICLE EQUIPMENT CHANGEOVER WITH 

MID MICHIGAN EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT SALES AND SERVICE L.L.C.  
  
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved a Contract with Mid Michigan 
Emergency Equipment Sales and Service L.L.C. on October 26, 2019 for the purchase, installation and 
changeover of equipment into the new police vehcile in the amount of $9,134.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the purchase of an additional light bar was required to complete the process and ready the 
vehicle for service; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Public Safety has reviewed the proposal submitted by with Mid Michigan 
Emergency Equipment Sales and Service L.L.C. as requested, and has determined the price of the 
additional equipment to be fair and reasonable.  
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST:  The city of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to change the contract with Mid Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales 
and Service L.L.C. for an additional  cost to the city of Owosso in the amount of 
$1,351.00 for one extra light bar. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are requested and authorized to sign Change Order No. 1 to 

Contract between the City of Owosso, Michigan and with Mid Michigan Emergency 
Equipment Sales and Service L.L.C. 



Draft 10 07-06-2020 

  
THIRD:    The Accounts Payable department is authorized to make payment up to the contract 

amount, including the change order, totaling $10,485.00.  
 
 
Bid Award - Sand and Gravel, Selection #1.  Accept the low bid of Constine Gravel Company for   
Class II Backfill Sand in the amount of $6.25 per ton, 22A gravel in the amount of $10.25 per ton, 21   
AA limestone in the amount of $22.00 per ton, and 6A limestone in the amount of $25.75 per ton for   
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, authorize payment in accordance with unit prices up to 2,500   
tons, 1,000 tons, 300 tons, and 100 tons respectively for a total amount not to exceed $35,050.00 as 
noted after Selection #2.  
 
Bid Award - Sand and Gravel, Selection #2.  Accept the low bid of Ocenasek, Inc. for H1 limestone   
chip in the amount of $32.40 per ton for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, authorize payment in   
accordance with the unit price up to 200 tons for a total amount not to exceed $6,480.00 as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 102-2020 
 

AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF SAND AND GRAVEL FROM  
CONSTINE GRAVEL COMPANY OF OWOSSO, MICHIGAN AND  

OCENASEK TRUCKING OF PERRY, MICHIGAN   
 

 WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan requires backfill sand to fill underground 
trenches and gravel for use in permanent street patches and other city properties; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city sought bids for Class II backfill sand, 22A gravel, 21AA gravel, 21AA Limestone, 6A 
limestone, and H1 limestone chip fiscal year 2020-2021; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is hereby determined that Constine Gravel Company and Ocenasek Trucking is qualified to 
provide such products and have submitted the lowest responsible and responsive bid; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to award the Sand and Gravel Bids to Constine Gravel Company of 
Owosso, Michigan in the amount of $6.25 per ton for Class II Sand, $10.25 per ton for 
22A gravel, $22.00 per ton for 21AA Limestone, and $25.75 per ton for 6A limestone for 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. 

 
SECOND The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 

public interest to award Gravel Bids to Ocenasek Trucking of Perry, Michigan in the 
amount of $32.40 per ton for H1 Limestone Chip for fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. 

 
THIRD: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the necessary documents 

for providing sand and gravel deliveries to the City of Owosso, Michigan. 
  
FOURTH: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay Constine Gravel Company up to 

the bid amount of $35,050.00.   
 
FIFTH: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay Ocenasek Trucking up to bid 

amount of $6,480.00.   
  
SIXTH: The above expenses shall be paid from the Water and Wastewater Annual Operating 

Fund, and Local and Major Street Annual Operating Funds. 
 



Draft 11 07-06-2020 

 
Purchase Authorization - Police Utility Vehicle.  Waive competitive bidding requirements, authorize a   
joint purchase from Owosso Motors, Inc. d/b/a Signature Auto Group of Owosso via Macomb County   
Contract No. 21-18 for one 2020 Ford Police Utility Vehicle in the amount of $35,679.00, and further   
authorize payment up to the quoted amount upon satisfactory delivery of said vehicle as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 103-2020 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A POLICE UTILITY VEHICLE 
FROM SIGNATURE AUTO GROUP OF OWOSSO 
VIA MACOMB COUNTY CONTRACT NO. 21-18 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has a police department requiring the 
use of police vehicles; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso may waive competitive bidding requirements when purchasing equipment 
in coordination with another municipality. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso desires to purchase one new police vehicle from Owosso Motors, Inc. 
d/b/a Signature Auto Group of Owosso, holder of the Contract No. 21-18 for police vehicles with Macomb 
County; and it is hereby determined that Signature Auto Group of Owosso is qualified to provide such 
vehicles and that it has submitted the responsible and responsive bid; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to purchase one 2021 Ford Interceptor Utility Police Vehicle from 
Signature Auto Group of Owosso, utilizing Macomb County Contract No. 21-18, for a cost 
to the City of Owosso of $35,679.00. 

 
SECOND: The Finance Director and the Director of Public Safety are hereby instructed and 

authorized to sign necessary documents to complete the purchase. 
 
THIRD: payment to Signature Auto Group in the amount of $35,679.00 is authorized upon 

delivery of the police vehicle. 
 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from the Police Division Capital Outlay fund 101- 
  300-978.000. 

 
 
Check Register – May 2020.*  Affirm check disbursements totaling $864,122.53 for May 2020. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Pidek, Law, Fear, Haber, Bailey, and Mayor 

Eveleth. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
Election Inspector Pay  



Draft 12 07-06-2020 

 
City Manager Henne noted that election inspectors currently get paid $10.00 per hour, set back in 2006.  
The proposed pay rate would be $13.00 per hour and has already been accounted for in the budget.   
 
Mr. Henne also went on to note that the Clerk may conscript some salaried employees to help with the 
election if needed. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Law to approve increasing pay rates for election inspectors as follows: 
 

Election Inspector   $13.00/hr 
Election Inspector – Minor  $10.00/hr 
Chairperson bonus   $50.00 
Vice Chair bonus   $25.00 
Receiving Board, flat rate  $50.00 

 
Motion supported by Councilmember Fear. 
 
Roll Call Vote.  
 
AYES: Councilmembers Bailey, Fear, Pidek, Haber, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmember Law, 

and Mayor Eveleth. 
 
NAYS:  None. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Glenn M. Chinavare, Director of Public Services.  Water Service Line Replacement Program. 
Cheryl A. Grice, Finance Director.  Revenue & Expenditure Report – May 2020. 
Downtown Development Authority/Main Street.  Minutes of June 3, 2020. 
Planning Commission.  Minutes of June 22, 2020. 
Waste Water Treatment Plant Review Board.  Minutes of June 23, 2020. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Lorraine Austin, Executive Director of the Friends of the Shiawassee River, noted that the Friends board 
could be a good resource for many of the SSO issues Council is attempting to tackle.  She encouraged 
Council to call on them. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, July 20, 2020 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority – County Representative – term expires 06-30-2020 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2022 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2021 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority – term expires June 30, 2022 
Historical Commission – 2 terms expire December 31, 2020 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 



Draft 13 07-06-2020 

Motion by Councilmember Bailey  for adjournment at 8:56 p.m. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Fear and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Christopher T. Eveleth, Mayor 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 
 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 
DATE: June 12, 2020 
 
TO: Mayor Eveleth and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Nathan Henne, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Rezoning Request for 425 and 429 Hamblin; Parcel 050-430-000-002-00 and 050-430-

000-003-00 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends the rezoning request.  The Planning Commission recommends denial of the rezoning 
request. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Planning commission held a public hearing at its regularly scheduled meeting on February 24, 2020 to 
hear a petition to rezone parcel 050-430-000-002-00, also known as 425 Hamblin and parcel 050-430-
000-003-00, also known as 429 Hamblin from R-2, Two Family Residential to I-1, Light Industrial. These 
vacant lots are adjacent to 434 E. Howard Street, known as Trebor Industries and the 3 lots are owned by 
Trebor/Carrie Cobb.  The purpose of rezoning this property was to allow the owner to have the existing 
shed remain on the lot of which the condemned dwelling would be removed (425 Hamblin) and the 3 lots 
would then be combined.  It was the owner’s intent to leave this area vacant and maintained and not for 
additional business storage. 
 

• The Planning Commission, after mailing notices and holding a public hearing, voted to deny the 
rezoning request at its regular meeting on February 24, 2020. 

• The Planning Commission heard objections from residential neighbors on Hamblin Street with the 
following conditions. 

• The Planning Commission made the following motion:  TO NOT APPROVE THE REZONING 
REQUEST DUE TO CONCERNS OF EXTENDING LIGHT INDUSTRIAL INTO A RESIDENTIAL 
AREA – SPOT ZONING. 

• AS AN ALTERNATIVE THE PLANNING COMMISSION IS RECOMMENDING THE 
FOLLOWING TO THE CITY COUNCIL:   
1. RECOMMENDS THE COMBINING OF THE LOTS WITH THE SPLIT ZONING.   
2. ONLY THE SHED WOULD BE ALLOWED TO REMAIN ON THE VACANT LOT.   
3. NO INDUSTRIAL STORAGE WOULD BE ALLOWED ON THE VACANT LOTS AS THEY 

WILL REMAIN ZONED AS RESIDENTIAL. 
 
City Code Section 38-555 lists the criteria when considering the rezoning of a property as follows: 

Sec. 38-555. Criteria for amendment of the official zoning map. 
 

In considering any petition for an amendment to the official zoning map, the planning commission and 
city council shall consider the following criteria in making its findings, recommendations and decision: 

 
(1) Consistency with the goals, policies, and future land use map of the City of Owosso Master Plan. 

If conditions upon which the master plan was developed (such as market factors, demographics, 

AKKirkland
Text Box
Memo reprinted from the meeting of June 15, 2020



infrastructure, traffic and environmental issues) have changed significantly since the master plan 
was adopted, as determined by the city, the planning commission and council shall consider the 
consistency with recent development trends in the area. 
 

(2) Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological, and other environmental features with 
the host of uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

 
(3) Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 

property with at least one (1) use permitted under the current zoning. 
 

(4) The compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 
 

(5) The capacity of the city's infrastructure and services sufficient to accommodate the uses 
permitted in the requested district without compromising the "health, safety, and welfare." 
 

(6) The apparent demand for the types of uses permitted in the requested zoning district in relation to 
the amount of land currently zoned and available to accommodate the demand. 
 

(7) The request has not previously been submitted within the past one (1) year, unless conditions 
have changed or new information has been provided. 
 

(8) Other factors deemed appropriate by the planning commission and city council. 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  
 

AMENDING CHAPTER 38 ZONING 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO REZONE THE PARCELS  

AT 425 & 429 HAMBLIN STREET 
AND AMEND THE ZONING MAP 

 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Owosso received a petition from Carrie Cobb and Trebor to 
rezone the parcels located at 425 & 429 Hamblin Street, parcel nos. 050-430-000-002-00 and 050-430-
000-003-00, from R-2 Two-Family Residential District to I-1 Light Industrial District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the planning commission subsequently published the request and mailed notices of the 
request to surrounding property owners, held a public hearing on the request, and deliberated on the 
request; and 
 
WHEREAS, city staff has recommended approval of the request as proposed and the planning 
commission has recommended the combination of the lots while maintaining the current zoning 
designations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on the request July 20, 2020, heard all interested 
persons, and deliberated on the request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the zoning petition meets the intent and criteria for a zoning map 
amendment, specifically as it relates to the requirements of Section 38-555 of the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Owosso. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS: 
 
SECTION 1.    OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AMENDMENT. That the following requested amendments to 
Chapter 38, Zoning, Sec. 38-27, Zoning Districts and Map, be approved as requested. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

SECTION 2.  LOT COMBINATION.  That the following lots be combined into a single parcel:   
 
 434 E. Howard Street 050-680-004-006-00 
 425 Hamblin Street 050-430-000-002-00 
 429 Hamblin Street 050-430-000-003-00 
 
SECTION 3.  AVAILABILITY. This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk's office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
 
SECTION 4.  EFFECTIVE DATE. This amendment shall become effective August 10, 2020. 

Parcel Address     Current Zoning Amended Zoning 

425 Hamblin St 
R-2 Two-Family Residential 
District 

I-1 Light Industrial District  

Parcel number: 050-430-000-002-00 
N 45’ OF S 136’ LOT 13 (EX E 59 ½’) LOUISA MERELLS ADD 

429 Hamblin St 
R-2 Two-Family Residential 
District 

I-1 Light Industrial District  

Parcel number: 050-430-000-003-00 
LOT 13 (EX E S 136’ & E 59 ½’) LOUISA MERELLS ADD 











66'

66'

66'

45'

46'

94.80'

57.96'

261.02'

66'

97.78'

89'

63.92'

67.56'

97.80'

217.31'

279.03'

130.44'

130.09'

434

423

421

409

460

452

446440

429

429

419

050-430-000-001-00

050-680-002-002-00

050-680-002-003-00

050-680-004-005-00

050-680-004-004-00

050-680-004-003-00

050-680-004-007-00

050-680-003-001-00

050-680-003-002-00

050-680-003-003-00

050-680-003-004-00

050-430-000-003-00

050-680-004-006-00

050-652-001-007-00

050-430-000-002-00

050-430-000-007-00050-430-000-004-00

050-430-000-005-00

050-680-005-003-00
050-680-005-004-00

050-680-005-005-00
050-680-005-006-00

050-680-005-007-00

050-430-000-031-00
050-680-005-008-00

050-680-005-009-00

050-430-000-018-00
050-680-005-010-00

050-430-000-017-00

050-680-001-001-00

050-680-001-002-00

050-651-000-032-00

OWOSSO

0 50

Feet



 
 
 

 

                   
 
  
 

   17195 Silver Parkway, #309 
   Fenton, MI  48430 

 
    

  Phone:  810-734-0000 
  Email: sprague@cibplanning.com 

 
    
 

 

February 20, 2020 
 
Planning Commission 
City of Owosso 
301 W. Main Street 
Owosso, Michigan 48867 
 
 
Subject: REZONING  
Location: 425, 429 Hamblin and 434 E. Howard Street 
Size of Site: .7 acres 
Request: To rezone roughly .7 acres at 425 and 429 Hamblin from R-2, Two-Family Residential to I-

1, Light Industrial. 
Applicant: Ms. Carrie Cobb, Trebor Industries 
 
Dear Planning Commissioners: 
 
At your request, we have reviewed the above application from Trebor Industries to rezone .7 acres of the 
subject property from R-2, Two-Family Residential to I-1, Light Industrial. The two properties to be 
rezoned will be combined into one single parcel with a parcel located at 434 E. Howard Street where the 
principal light industrial business is located. The parcel identification numbers are as follows; 
 

1. 050-430-000-003-00 
2. 050-430-000-002-00 
3. 050-680-004-006-00 

 
Our comments are based on a review of the information submitted by the applicant, a site visit, meetings 
with the applicant, discussions with the Planning Commission, and conformance to the City’s Master Plan 
and Zoning Ordinance. In reaching a decision on the application, the Planning Commission should consider 
our comments along with those from other staff and consultants, relevant input from the public, 
additional information provided by the applicant, and your own findings based on ordinance standards as 
part of your deliberation and recommendation to City Council. 
 
LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION 
 
The subject parcels are located at the norther extent of Hamblin, adjacent to the rail yard. The applicant 
owns a light industrial business located at 434. E Howard street. The applicant also owns the Hamblin 
parcels and would like to combine them into one single parcel associated with the business.  
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:sprague@cibplanning.com


City of Owosso Planning Commission 
425/429 Hamblin Rezoning Review 
February 20, 2020 
Page 2 
 

EXISTING LAND USE, ZONING AND FUTURE LAND USE 
 

 Existing Land Use Zoning Master Plan 

Subject Site Vacant R-3, One-Family Residential   Single-Family Residential* 

North Industrial I-1, Light Industrial I-1, Light Industrial 

South Single and two-family 
residential R-2, Two-Family Residential Residential 

East Single and two-family 
residential R-2, Two-Family Residential Residential 

West Residential and Industrial R-2, Two-Family Residential   Residential 

 *The map below is the existing zoning map for the City of Owosso 
 

 
 
PERMITTED AND SPECIAL LAND USES  
 
While the area is a mish-mash of zoning districts including R-2, Commercial and Industrial, it is important 
to consider what land uses could be utilized on these properties should the Planning Commission approve 
the rezoning of the two parcels to light industrial. A full list of uses has been provided on a separate 
document from this report. 
   
DISCUSSION 
 
In considering any petition for an amendment to the official zoning map, the planning commission and 
city council shall consider the following criteria in making its findings, recommendations and decision:  
 

1. Consistency with the goals, policies, and future land use map of the City of Owosso Master Plan. 
If conditions upon which the master plan was developed (such as market factors, demographics, 
infrastructure, traffic and environmental issues) have changed significantly since the master plan 
was adopted, as determined by the city, the planning commission and council shall consider the 
consistency with recent development trends in the area.  
 
Finding – While the predominant land use to the east and south of the subject parcels remain 
residential, there are commercial uses nearby as well as industrial uses immediately adjacent to 



City of Owosso Planning Commission 
425/429 Hamblin Rezoning Review 
February 20, 2020 
Page 3 
 

the north of these parcels. The applicant has indicated that they will not be expanding the 
industrial operations on this site and would be utilizing the site for additional storage purposes, 
specifically a storage shed already on site. It is our belief that this rezoning would not significantly 
impact the neighborhood, nor be in conflict with the overall goals of the Master Plan, nor impact 
the intent of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological, and other environmental features 
with the host of uses permitted in the proposed zoning district.  
 
Finding – This site would be compatible with the host of uses permitted under the I-1 Zoning 
Classification.  

 
3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 

property with at least one (1) use permitted under the current zoning.  
 
Finding – To our knowledge, no evidence exists showing that the applicant could not receive a 
reasonable return on investment through developing the property as residential. In this case, the 
applicant would prefer to utilize the properties as a means to provide additional storage in 
association with the existing business already in the I-1 district.  

 
4. The compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 

uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values.  
 
Finding – Based on information from the applicant, we do not believe that there would be 
significant impact on surrounding property values if the properties are utilized in the way the 
applicant has stated. That is not to say that there couldn’t be a significant impact in the future if 
these properties were ever developed for a higher intensity use beyond storage for the existing 
business. The Planning Commission will have to discuss the possibility of future development that 
would not be consistent with the surrounding land uses.  

 
5. The capacity of the city's infrastructure and services sufficient to accommodate the uses 

permitted in the requested district without compromising the "health, safety, and welfare."  
 

Finding – There should be no issues with existing infrastructure being able to accommodate and 
service this site.  

 
6. The apparent demand for the types of uses permitted in the requested zoning district in relation 

to the amount of land currently zoned and available to accommodate the demand.  
 

Finding – We do not see an overwhelming demand for this use in relation to the amount of land 
already zoned I-1. This is not a situation of a new business looking to rezone property as an ideal 
site for their business. This is a case where a property owner currently owns all the parcels and 
would like to combine them to serve the business without a split-zone situation on their property. 
 

7. The request has not previously been submitted within the past one (1) year, unless conditions 
have changed, or new information has been provided.  



City of Owosso Planning Commission 
425/429 Hamblin Rezoning Review 
February 20, 2020 
Page 4 
 

Finding – This application has not been previously before the City.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Based upon the above comments, we recommend approval of the rezoning request for 425 and 429 
Hamblin based on the following items; 
 

1. That the request is not in overwhelming conflict with the Master Plan or the Zoning Ordinance; 
2. The site is compatible with uses in the proposed I-1 Zoning District;  
3. The applicant is not rezoning to increase the return on investment of the property; 
4. That the Planning Commission understands that the proposed use may not be incompatible with 

surrounding land uses, but other uses in the I-1 district may be; 
5. Infrastructure to the site is appropriate for the proposed use; 
6. That the existing property owner owns all applicable parcels and would like to combine them into 

one contiguously zoned lot; and 
7. The request has not been previously submitted to the City for consideration. 

 
We look forward to discussing this with you at your February Planning Commission meeting. If you have 
any further questions, please contact us at 810-734-0000. 
 
Sincerely, 
  
CIB Planning 
 
 
 
 
Justin Sprague 
Vice President  
 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: June 12, 2020 
 
TO: City Council  
  
FROM: Nathan Henne, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Rezoning of N Washington Street 
  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Planning Commission recommends city council conduct first reading and set a public hearing for July 
20, 2020 to receive citizen comment regarding request to rezone the parcel commonly known as N. 
Washington from RM-1 Multiple-Family Residential District-Low Rise to RM-1 Multiple-Family Residential 
District-Low Rise with Planned Unit Development (PUD) Overlay. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
  
 
The Planning Commission, after mailing notices and holding a public hearing, voted at its regular meeting 
on May 26, 2020 to recommend rezoning the aforementioned parcel.  Further, staff recommends approval 
of this petition to rezone property as submitted subject to the ordinance reading and public hearing process. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Rezoning should not pose any fiscal impacts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document originated by: Tanya Buckelew 

 
 
 
 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 
 

AMENDING CHAPTER 38 ZONING 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO REZONE THE PARCEL ON THE 

SW CORNER OF N. WASHINGTON & WESLEY STREETS 
AND AMEND THE ZONING MAP 

 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Owosso received a petition from Bailey Park Homes, L3C, 
developer of the real property identified as N. Washington Street, parcel number 050-535-000-001-00 to 
rezone the parcel from RM-1 Multiple-Family Residential District-Low Rise to RM-1 Multiple-Family 
Residential District-Low Rise with Planned Unit Development (PUD) Overlay; and 
 
WHEREAS, the planning commission subsequently published the request and mailed notices of the 
request to surrounding property owners, held a public hearing on the request, and deliberated on the 
request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city staff and planning commission recommend, without reservations or conditions, the 
rezoning of N. Washington Street as petitioned; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on the request July 20, 2020, heard all interested 
persons, and deliberated on the request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the zoning petition meets the intent and criteria for a zoning map 
amendment, specifically as it relates to the requirements of Section 38-555 of the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Owosso. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS: 
 
SECTION 1.    OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AMENDMENT. That Chapter 38, Zoning, Sec. 38-27, Zoning 
Districts and Map, reflect the following change, to be noted on the official map and filed with the city clerk: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

SECTION 2.  AVAILABILITY. This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk's office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
 
SECTION 3.  EFFECTIVE DATE. This amendment shall become effective August 10, 2020. 

Parcel Address     Current Zoning Amended Zoning 
N. Washington 
Street, described as 
follows: 

RM-1 Multiple-Family 
Residential District-Low Rise 

RM-1 Multiple-Family Residential 
District-Low Rise with Planned 
Unit Development (PUD) Overlay 

Parcel number: 050-535-000-001-00 
COM 358' N & 33' W OF INTER S LN SEC 12 & C/L N WASH ST TH W 231' N 6' W 
133.7' N 279' E 364.21' S 284' TO POB PART OF SE 1/4 SE 1/4 SEC 12T7N R2E 



N WASHINGTON STREET

OWOSSO

0 500

Feet

























         301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958 · (989) 725-0599 · FAX (989) 723-8854 

MEMORANDUM 
DATE:  July 20, 2020  

TO: Mayor Christopher Eveleth, City Council, and Manager Nathan Henne   

FROM: Treena Chick, Assessor   

RE:  Tax Abatement Application – Owosso REI Group, LLC-300 W Main St. 

As mentioned in last month’s memo, the city clerk received an application for tax abatement as required under 
the city’s abatement policy on March 5, 2020.  Also received was an application for an Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate. 

The council will be taking action on the tax abatement application for the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation 
Exemption Certificate.  The project is valued at approximately $8,000,000 and will employ 20 new full time 
employees and 45 new part time employees.  

The application for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate, Act 146 of 2000, is a tax 
abatement which freezes the existing taxable value on a designated facility prior to rehabilitation for up to 12 
years.  The rehabilitated facility value will not be fully taxable until the abatement is no longer in place.  The 
project proposes to completely renovate the four story building to create a multi-use building containing 
commercial, retail and office space and 17 residential apartments on the upper floors.  This will convert 30,000 
square feet of unutilized space and will increase downtown private residence availability.  The estimated cost 
for this redevelopment is $8,000,000.  This exemption meets the requirements of the city’s tax abatement 
policy and, if approved, should be granted for 12 years.  

The table below shows the estimated effect on General Fund services as a result of granting this abatement.  
This is using an estimated rehabilitated taxable value of $3,000,000 calculated over a 12 year period with a 
1% increase in property taxes annually. 

Service % of Gen Fund $/year 12 year total with 
1% increase 

Police 27% $11,272.77 $151,506.03 
Fire 25% $10,437.75 $140,283.36 

Gen Govt 23% $9,602.73 $129,060.69 
Pub Works 10% $4,175.10 $56,113.34 

Community Dev 5% $2,087.55 $28,056.67 
Parks & Rec 3% $1,252.53 $16,834.00 

Trans out 7% $2,922.57 $39,279.34 
Total 100% $41,751.00 $561,133.44 

The city clerk has notified the taxing jurisdictions of this application as required under the abatement policy 
and statute.  

As always, if you have any further questions, please feel free to contact me at (989) 725-0530. 



RESOLUTION NO.

APPROVE THE APPLICATION FOR AN 
OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 

FROM OWOSSO REI GROUP, LLC    
FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT  

300 W. MAIN STREET 

WHEREAS, the City of Owosso is a Qualified Local Government Unit within the State of 
Michigan and is empowered to provide tax exemptions for increased value of rehabilitated 
facilities within the City; and 

WHEREAS, after public notice and a public hearing on April 18, 2016, the City Council of the 
City of Owosso approved an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District at 300 W. Main Street in 
Owosso, Michigan.  As provided by section 4(2) of Public Act 146 of 2000, said property more 
particularly described as: 

PART OF ORIGINAL PLAT DESCRIBED AS; SOUTH 1/2 BLOCK 24 & SOUTH 10' OF NORTH 
1/2 BLOCK 24, ALSO ADJACENT RESERVE 1, LYING BETWEEN EAST BANK OF 
SHIAWASSEE RIVER AND SAID DESCRIPTION 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk received an application on March 5, 2020 from Nemer Hadad, 
authorized agent for Owosso REI Group, LLC owners of the property, for an Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate; and 

WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing concerning the application for an exemption certificate 
was provided to the Assessor of the City and the legislative body of each taxing unit that levies ad 
valorem property taxes in the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City finds that the property meets the definition of an obsolete property as 
defined in section 2(h) of Public Act 146 of 2000 and the application for the exemption certificate 
is complete; and 

WHEREAS, the City finds that the property relates to a rehabilitation program that when 
completed constitutes a “rehabilitated facility” within the meaning of P.A. 146 of 2000, and said 
property is located within an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District established in a Qualified 
Local Governmental Unit eligible under Public Act 146 of 2000 to establish such a district; and  

WHEREAS, the rehabilitation includes improvements aggregating 10% or more of the true cash 
value of the property at commencement of the rehabilitation as provided by section 2(l) of PA 146 
of 2000; and 

WHEREAS, it has been found that the rehabilitation of the obsolete property is calculated to, 
and will at the time of the issuance of the certificate, have the reasonable likelihood to increase 
commercial activity, retain and create employment, and revitalize the downtown; and 

WHEREAS, the taxable value of the property proposed to be exempt plus the aggregate taxable 
value of the property already exempt under PA 146 of 2000 and under PA 198 of 1974 does not 
exceed 5% of the total taxable value of the unit; and 

WHEREAS, the applicant is not delinquent in any taxes related to the facility; and 

WHEREAS, the rehabilitation work described in the application had not commenced prior to the 
establishment of the District. 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, based on the findings above made at public 
hearing, the City Council of the City of Owosso authorizes the application for an Obsolete 
Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate at 300 W. Main Street for a period of  12 years; and 

ALSO, BE IT RESOLVED that the rehabilitation shall be completed within eighteen (18) months 
from the date of approval of said application, and 

FURTHERMORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the application and resolution are authorized for 
submittal to the State Tax Commission for final review and authorization. 

Roll Call Vote. 

AYES:  

NAYS:  

I hereby certify that the foregoing document is a true and complete copy of action taken by the 
Owosso City Council at the regular meeting of July 20, 2020. 

____________________________________ 
Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 









July 15, 2020 

Owosso City Council 
301 W. Main Street 
Owosso, MI 48867 

301 WEST MAIN STREET • OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48B67-295B 

Re: Obsolescence - 300 W. Main Street - 78-050-470-024-001-00 

Mayor Eveleth & City Council: 

Functional obsolescence is loss in value due to inability of the structure to pe,form adequately the 
.function.for which ii is used. This may be a result from changes in demand, design and even 
technology. It may also take form of deficiency do to the need for modernization. In any case, it is 
the perception of a loss in utility. 

As required for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate, for the property at 300 
W. Main Street, owned by Owosso REI Group, LLC, the following statement describes the
functionally obsolescence of this property.

I. Roof in need of repair/replacement in many areas, currently leaking and damaging
interior rooms;

2. Electrical system and wiring removed in some areas and insufficient for today's demand
requirements. Repair/replacement/upgrade in lighting a must to meet highest and best
use of a mixed use facility;

3. Wiring for technology in need of complete replacement. Current system is obsolete and
not able to meet today" s requirements;

4. Exterior metal wall panels damaged and need of repair/replacement;
5. Brick walls on back of west section cracked, crumbling and need repaired;
6. Interior separation walls damaged in many areas needing removed/replaced;
7. Heating and cooling system needs complete replacement;
8. Only a few entrances meet barrier free requirements;
9. Majority of windows are old and some are only aluminum storm;

It is my opinion the functional obsolescence of this parcel has caused a reduction in value that 
exceeds 50% in its current use. 

If you have any further questions, please feel free to contact me at (989) 725-0530. 

Respectfu II y, 

�� L��Jl 
Treena Chick 
Assessor, MAAO (3) 





























 
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY 
 

 
202 S. WATER ST.  OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  (989) 725-0580  FAX (989)725-0528 

  
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:   July 14, 2020   
 
TO:   City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart  
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   Traffic Control Order # 1436 
 
 
Devin Shaw, Midwest Brass & Gas Organizer, is requesting the following parking lot closure to 
park trucks with trailers: 
 
Requested Closure:  
 
City Parking lot behind Roma’s, lot #P. Midwest Brass & Gas will park about forty trucks/trailers 
in the parking lot from August 16th to August 21st.  
 
The Public Safety Department has issued Traffic Control Order # 1436 in accordance with the 
Rules of Issuance of Certain Traffic Control Orders. Staff recommends approval and further 
authorization of a traffic control order formalizing the action.  

 
 
 

 



CITY OF OWOSSO 
 

TRAFFIC CONTROL ORDER 
 

(SECTION 2.53 UNIFORM TRAFFIC CODE) 
 

          
 ORDER NO.  DATE       TIME 

 1436    8-16-2020  11:00 am 
           
 REQUESTED BY 

Kevin Lenkart – Director of Public Safety 
           
 TYPE OF CONTROL 

Parking Lot Closure 
           
 LOCATION OF CONTROL     
 
 Parking lot behind Roma’s  

   
          
 EVENT:   August 16, 2020 to August 21, 2020 

 
 Midwest Brass and Gas  
 
           
 APPROVED BY COUNCIL  

                           , 20   
           
 REMARKS 



AKKirkland
Line















 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
DATE: July 14, 2020  
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Josh Adams; Executive Director, Owosso Main Street/DDA 
 
SUBJECT: OMS/DDA Revolving Loan Fund – Bridge Loan Approval 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
In early 2020, Apple Tree Lane/Wooden Crate Popcorn Company was awarded a MEDC Match 
on Main grant of $25,000.00 for business expansion. This grant is a reimbursement grant 
offered by the State of Michigan through the MEDC. Apple Tree Lane/Wooden Crate Popcorn 
Company is asking for a bridge loan to aid to the implementation of grant activities. Once 
activities are completed, grant dollars will be issued to the coordinating program (Owosso Main 
Street/DDA).  
 
BACKGROUND:  
On June 17, 2019 City Council approved the new OMS/DDA Revolving Loan & Grant Program, 
giving stewardship of the loan and grant process to the Owosso Main Street/DDA Board.  

During their July 14, 2020 Board Meeting, the OMS/DDA Board of Directors approved the loan 
application for approval.  

 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
Dollars will be disbursed from the OMS/DDA Revolving Loan & Grant fund. Once Match on 
Main Grant activities are completed, the State of Michigan will issue Grant Money to Owosso 
Main Street/DDA – at that time the $25,000.00 loan will be paid in full. 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL  
OF THE RELEASE OF OMS/DDA REVOLVING LOAN FUND LOAN TO  

APPLE TREE LANE/WOODEN CRATE POPCORN CO. 
ASSOCIATED TO WORK AT 207 N. WASHINGTON STREET 

 
WHEREAS, in 1994 the city of Owosso established the Downtown Owosso Revolving (formerly 
UDAG/CDBG) Loan Program for projects within the Owosso Downtown Development Authority district; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, on June 17, 2019 City Council approved the new OMS/DDA Revolving Loan & Grant 
Program, giving stewardship of the loan and grant process to the Owosso Main Street/DDA Board. 
 
WHEREAS, on July 1, 2020 a loan application was submitted to the OMS/DDA for a loan request from 
The Bake Shop and Coffee House, Inc. dba Apple Tree Lane/Wooden Crate Popcorn  Co. for $25,000.00 
for business expansion costs associated with business located at 207 N. Washington Street. 
 
WHEREAS, on July 14, 2020 the OMS/DDA Revolving Loan Committee reviewed and approved the 
application, giving it an overall score of 75. This score is well above the 30 points required for 
consideration. The Committee determined the loan award for $25,000.00.  
 
WHEREAS, on July 15, 2020 the OMS/DDA Board of Directors approved the Revolving Loan Committee 
recommendations. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso approves the loan of $25,000.00 to The Bake Shop and Coffee 
House, Inc. dba Apple Tree Lane/Wooden Crate Popcorn Co. for business expansion 
costs associated with business located at 207 N. Washington Street, according to the 
terms & specifications determined by the OMS/DDA Loan & Grant Manual. 



CITY OF OWOSSO, MICHIGAN      
OWOSSO MAIN STREET/DDA (OMS)  

REVOLVING LOAN FUND (RLF) & GRANT PROGRAM 
RATIONALE WORKSHEET 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

301 W Main Street, Owosso, MI | 989.494.3344 | downtownowosso@gmail.com | www.downtownowosso.org 

APPLICATION MUST SCORE 30 OR MORE POINTS TO BE CONSIDERED ELIGIBLE FOR A LOAN. 

APPLICANT NAME: SUSAN TREEN/THE BAKE SHOP COFFEEHOUSE   DATE REVIEWED: JULY 14, 2020 

PROJECT ADDRESS: 207 N. WASHINGTON STREET, OWOSSO, MI 48867 

PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK: BUSINESS EXPANSION - EQUIPMENT & INTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS 

LOAN REQUEST: $25,000 BRIDGE LOAN FOR MOM GRANT GRANT REQUEST: NONE 

 

APPROVAL:     | SPECIAL NOTATIONS:_____________________________________________________ 

Rationale Worksheet

Criteria Score 
Range Score Explanation/Feedback:

Will proposed loan or grant 
dollars be used to leverage 
additional State/Federal 
Programs?

0-15 15 Leverage for a Match on Main Grant Award

Does the project help fulfill OMS 
Transformation Strategy? 0-10 10 Business has a regional draw & will be creating 

online sales elements.

Is the project supported by a 
relevant business plan? 0-10 10 Business has an SBDC approved Business Plan

a) Does the project activate 
currently vacant or 
underutilized property 
within the district? OR 

b) Is the project an existing 
business expanding their 
product/services based on 
customer demand/feedback 
or new innovative items/new 
technologies.

0-10 10
Expansion activates underutilized space within 
their current building. Expansion will also involve 
expanding their business product lines & services. 

Does the project have a well-
articulated path to completion? 0-10 10 Yes, per Match on Main Application

Does the project provide the 
best use/business type for the 
district? 

0-10 10 Yes = Marker Space

Does the project have formal 
plans, site renderings, and/or 
cost estimates?

0-5 5 Yes

Does the project have adequate 
matching funds? 0-5 5 Yes, grant requires a 25% match

TOTAL= 75



ADDITIONAL NOTES: 



 PROMISSORY NOTE 
 

$25,000.00 
         Dated: _________________  

                           At:   Owosso, Michigan    
  
 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned promises to pay to the order of the City of Owosso, a 
Michigan municipal corporation, at its office at 301 West Main Street, Owosso, Michigan 48867, the 
principal sum of  TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($25,000.00), THE 
BALANCE OF A LOAN ISSUED in lawful money of the United States of America. From this date 
forward Principal shall be payable in 1 installment of $25,000.00 upon final completion of all Match on 
Main grant activities and State of Michigan funds are issued to Owosso Main Street/DDA for distribution.  
  

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, at no time shall the interest payable be 
greater than the maximum permitted by law.  
  

As to this note and all other instruments securing the indebtedness, the undersigned and any 
endorsers severally waive all applicable exemption rights, whether under the State Constitution, 
homestead laws or otherwise, and also severally waive valuation and appraisement, presentment, protest 
and demand, notice of protest demand and dishonor and nonpayment of this note, and expressly agree that 
the maturity of this note, or any payment hereunder, may be extended from time to time without in any 
way affecting the liability of the undersigned or said endorsers. 
  

Any default in the payment of principal and/or interest required by this note or other instruments 
securing this note shall be a default hereunder entitling the holder to accelerate the indebtedness hereunder 
(notwithstanding any provisions contained in the evidence thereof to the contrary), exercise any one or 
more of the rights and remedies granted to the City of Owosso, Michigan. By execution of this agreement, 
the parties consent to venue in the County of Shiawassee, Michigan of any action brought to enforce the 
terms of this agreement or to collect any moneys due under it. 
 
 This note is to be construed according to the laws of the State of Michigan. 
  

 
BUSINESS ENTITY HERE 
 
BY:  _____________________________ 
 
ITS: _____________________________ 
 
 

 
CITY OF OWOSSO                             
 
BY:  _____________________________ 
 Christopher T. Eveleth 
ITS: Mayor 
 



GUARANTY AGREEMENT 
 
 
 This Guaranty is made on the ______day of ____________, 2020, by The City of Owosso, a 
Michigan municipal corporation (Creditor) at its office at 301 West Main Street, Owosso, Michigan 
48867, __________________________(Guarantor), and ________________ (Debtor). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Creditor has agreed to extend a loan to Debtor in the amount of $25,000.00, as evident by a 
Promissory Notes (Note) to be executed on this date; provided, however, that as security for the 
performance of the Debtor’s obligations, the undersigned, as Guarantor, has agreed to guaranty the 
performance and payment of the indebtedness an all obligations of Debtor pursuant to the Note and any 
additional security for the performance and payment of the indebtedness. 
 

 B. Guarantor acknowledges the indebtedness, and the performance and payment of the indebtedness is of 
genuine and material value to the sole and separate estate of Guarantor. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

 Guarantor, with full knowledge of Creditor’s reliance on this Guaranty, and in consideration of the 
execution of the Note, does guaranty to creditor, including Creditor’s successors, administrators, personal 
representatives, and assigns, the prompt payment of Debtor’s obligations and the full payment of Debtor’s 
obligations (all in accordance with the terms of the Note and any related documents, including and security). 
 
 This Guaranty shall be a continuing guaranty until all of the terms of the Notes and any related documents, 
including and security, shall be fully paid, satisfied, and discharged. The liability of Guarantor shall be direct and 
not conditional or contingent on the pursuit of any remedies made against Debtor.  
 
 By execution of this agreement, the parties consent to venue in the County of Shiawassee, Michigan of 
any action brought to enforce the terms of this agreement or to collect any moneys due under it.  
 
The undersigned has executed this Guaranty on the date set forth below. 
 

DATED: ______________________,2020 
 
PREPARED BY: 
Josh Adams 
Executive Director 
Owosso Main Street/DDA 
301 W. Main Street 
Owosso, Michigan 48867 
(989) 494-3344 

GUARANTOR 
 
BY: ___________________________________ 
 
PRINT NAME:__________________________ 
 
ADDRESS: ____________________________ 
_______________________________________ 
 

 



 

 

Warrant 586 
July 14, 2020 

 

 

 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 

Caledonia Charter Township Caledonia Utility Fund payment-4/1/20-6/30/20 Water 

 
 

$31,190.25 
 

Owosso Charter Township 
Owosso Charter Township 2011 Water Agreement 
payment-4/1/20 - 6/30/20 

Water $13,693.96 

Gould Law PC Professional services-6/14/20-7/13/20 General $13,720.20 

    

    

    

  Total $48,604.41 



 
 
 
 
 
 
         301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958· (989) 725-0599 ·  FAX   (989) 723-8854 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE: July 20, 2020                  
 
TO: Mayor Chris Eveleth, City Council, and Manager Nathan Henne   
 
FROM:   Treena Chick, Assessor  
  
RE:   Property Transfer Affidavit Waiver Resolution 
 
 
 
MCL 211.27b (1) (c) and (d) allows for penalties to be imposed for failure on part of a 
buyer, grantee or other transferee of real property to timely file a Property Transfer 
Affidavit, Form 2766, within 45 days of a transfer of ownership.  The original intention of 
these penalties was to ensure that the City Assessor is being properly notified of a transfer 
of ownership.  This issue rarely exists as the City Assessor is also notified of transfer of 
ownerships through other forms that are also required to be filed following a transfer of 
ownership.  For these reasons, these penalties have not historically been enforced nor 
does the city have any record of ever imposing the penalties. 
 
MCL 211.27b (5) allows the governing body of the local tax collecting unit to waive, by 
resolution, the penalties which are limited to $5 per day up to $200 for residential real 
property and $20 per day up to $1,000 for commercial and industrial real property.  
Waiving the penalties will ensure that the city remains compliant with the General Property 
Tax Act as well as protect the taxpayers from unnecessary penalties. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that the Resolution Waiving Penalty Fees for Failure to File 
a Property Transfer Affidavit be adopted by the City Council. 
 
If there are any questions, please feel free to contact me at (989) 725-0530. 

 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

WAIVING PENALTY FEES AND INTEREST FOR FAILURE TO FILE  
A PROPERTY TRANSFER AFFIDAVIT 

 
WHEREAS, MCL 211.27a(10) requires the buyer, grantee, or other transferee of the property 

shall notify the appropriate assessing office in the local unit of government in which the property is located 
of the transfer of ownership of the property within 45 days of the transfer of ownership, on a form 
prescribed by the state tax commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, MCL 211.27b(1) imposes penalties for the failure to file a Property Transfer Affidavit 

after the 45 day period has elapsed; and 
 
WHEREAS, MCL 211.27b(5) allows the governing body of the local tax collecting unit to waive, 

by resolution, the penalty levied under subsection (1); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso hereby waives the penalties for failure to file a Property Transfer 

Affidavit within 45 days of a transfer of ownership. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that the City of Owosso hereby waives 

penalties under Section 211.27b(1) of the General Property Tax Act. 
 
IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that all resolutions or parts of resolution in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed.   
 

Roll Call Vote.  

AYES:  

  

NAYS:   

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing document is a true and complete copy of action taken by the Owosso 
City Council at the regular meeting of July 20, 2020. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 



Michigan Department of Treasury
2766 (Rev. 05-16)

L-4260

Property Transfer Affidavit This form is issued under authority of P.A. 415 of 1994. Filing is mandatory.

This form must be filed whenever real estate or some types of personal property are transferred (even if you are not recording a deed). The  completed 
Affidavit must be filed by the new owner with the assessor for the city or township where the property is located within 45 days of the transfer. 
The information on this form is NOT CONFIDENTIAL.

1. Street Address of Property 2. County 3. Date of Transfer (or land contract signed)

4. Location of Real Estate (Check appropriate field and enter name in the space below.) 5. Purchase Price of Real Estate

City Township Village
6. Seller’s (Transferor) Name

7. Property Identification Number (PIN). If you don’t have a PIN, attach legal description. 8. Buyer’s (Transferee) Name and Mailing Address

PIN. This number ranges from 10 to 25 digits. It usually includes hyphens and sometimes includes 
letters. It is on the property tax bill and on the assessment notice.

9. Buyer’s (Transferee) Telephone Number

Items 10 - 15 are optional. However, by completing them you may avoid further correspondence.
10. Type of Transfer. Transfers include, but are not limited to, deeds, land contracts, transfers involving trusts or wills, certain long-term leases and business interest. See 

page 2 for list.
Land Contract Lease Deed Other (specify) _______________________

11. Was property purchased from a financial institution? 12. Is the transfer between related persons? 13. Amount of Down Payment

Yes No Yes No

14. If you financed the purchase, did you pay market rate of interest? 15. Amount Financed (Borrowed)

Yes No

EXEMPTIONS
Certain types of transfers are exempt from uncapping. If you believe this transfer is exempt, indicate below the type of exemption you are claiming. 
If you claim an exemption, your assessor may request more information to support your claim.

Transfer from one spouse to the other spouse

Change in ownership solely to exclude or include a spouse

Transfer between certain family members *(see page 2)

Transfer of that portion of a property subject to a life lease or life estate (until the life lease or life estate expires)

Transfer between certain family members of that portion of a property after the expiration or termination of a life estate or life lease retained 
by transferor ** (see page 2)
Transfer to effect the foreclosure or forfeiture of real property

Transfer by redemption from a tax sale

Transfer into a trust where the settlor or the settlor’s spouse conveys property to the trust and is also the sole beneficiary of the trust

Transfer resulting from a court order unless the order specifies a monetary payment

Transfer creating or ending a joint tenancy if at least one person is an original owner of the property (or his/her spouse)

Transfer to establish or release a security interest (collateral)

Transfer of real estate through normal public trading of stock

Transfer between entities under common control or among members of an affiliated group

Transfer resulting from transactions that qualify as a tax-free reorganization under Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code.

Transfer of qualified agricultural property when the property remains qualified agricultural property and affidavit has been filed.

Transfer of qualified forest property when the property remains qualified forest property and affidavit has been filed.

Transfer of land with qualified conservation easement (land only - not improvements)

Other, specify: __________________________________________________________________________________________________

CErTIfICaTION

I certify that the information above is true and complete to the best of my knowledge.
Printed Name

Signature Date

Name and title, if signer is other than the owner Daytime Phone Number E-mail Address

 



2766, Page 2

Instructions:
This form must be filed when there is a transfer of real property or one of the following types of personal property:
• Buildings on leased land.
• Leasehold improvements, as defined in MCL Section 211.8(h).
• Leasehold estates, as defined in MCL Section 211.8(i) and (j).

Transfer of ownership means the conveyance of title to or a present interest in property, including the beneficial use of the 
property. For complete descriptions of qualifying transfers, please refer to MCL Section 211.27a(6)(a-j).

Excerpts from Michigan Compiled Laws (MCL), Chapter 211
**Section 211.27a(7)(d): Beginning December 31, 2014, a transfer of that portion of residential real property that had been 
subject to a life estate or life lease retained by the transferor resulting from expiration or termination of that life estate or life 
lease, if the transferee is the transferor’s or transferor’s spouse’s mother, father, brother, sister, son, daughter, adopted son, 
adopted daughter, grandson, or granddaughter and the residential real property is not used for any commercial purpose 
following the transfer. Upon request by the department of treasury or the assessor, the transferee shall furnish proof within 
30 days that the transferee meets the requirements of this subdivision. If a transferee fails to comply with a request by the 
department of treasury or assessor under this subdivision, that transferee is subject to a fine of $200.00.

*Section 211.27a(7)(u): Beginning December 31, 2014, a transfer of residential real property if the transferee is the 
transferor’s or the transferor’s spouse’s mother, father, brother, sister, son, daughter, adopted son, adopted daughter, 
grandson, or granddaughter and the residential real property is not used for any commercial purpose following the 
conveyance. Upon request by the department of treasury or the assessor, the transferee shall furnish proof within 30 
days that the transferee meets the requirements of this subparagraph. If a transferee fails to comply with a request by the 
department of treasury or assessor under this subparagraph, that transferee is subject to a fine of $200.00.

Section 211.27a(10): “... the buyer, grantee, or other transferee of the property shall notify the appropriate assessing office 
in the local unit of government in which the property is located of the transfer of ownership of the property within 45 days of 
the transfer of ownership, on a form prescribed by the state tax commission that states the parties to the transfer, the date 
of the transfer, the actual consideration for the transfer, and the property’s parcel identification number or legal description.”

Section 211.27(5): “Except as otherwise provided in subsection (6), the purchase price paid in a transfer of property 
is not the presumptive true cash value of the property transferred. In determining the true cash value of transferred 
property, an assessing officer shall assess that property using the same valuation method used to value all other 
property of that same classification in the assessing jurisdiction.”

Penalties:
Section 211.27b(1): “If the buyer, grantee, or other transferee in the immediately preceding transfer of ownership of 
property does not notify the appropriate assessing office as required by section 27a(10), the property’s taxable value shall 
be adjusted under section 27a(3) and all of the following shall be levied: 
(a) Any additional taxes that would have been levied if the transfer of ownership had been recorded as required under this 
act from the date of transfer. 

(b) Interest and penalty from the date the tax would have been originally levied.
(c) For property classified under section 34c as either industrial real property or commercial real property, a penalty in the 
following amount:
(i) Except as otherwise provided in subparagraph (ii), if the sale price of the property transferred is $100,000,000.00 or 
less, $20.00 per day for each separate failure beginning after the 45 days have elapsed, up to a maximum of $1,000.00.
(ii) If the sale price of the property transferred is more than $100,000,000.00, $20,000.00 after the 45 days have elapsed.
(d) For real property other than real property classified under section 34c as industrial real property or commercial real 
property, a penalty of $5.00 per day for each separate failure beginning after the 45 days have elapsed, up to a maximum 
of $200.00.



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 
DATE: July 15, 2020 
 
TO: Mayor Eveleth and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: CARES Act Public Safety Hazard Pay Grant 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Federal CARES Act was passed in March of 2020 to combat some of the economic impacts of the 
COVID-19 pandemic.  As part of this program, some money has been granted to individual states to 
administer various relief programs.  In Michigan, one of those programs is the First Responder Hazard Pay 
Premiums Program (FRHPPP) – PA 123 (2020) Sec 601.  This program reimburses a municipality for up 
to $1000 per employee for hazard pay during the COVID-19 response efforts.  Police, Fire, and EMS 
employees are eligible. 
 
According to the State, a city may apply for this grant before it has paid this benefit.  However, the way that 
the deadline for grant submission falls in relation to the date of award creates a situation where it is 
impossible to apply “contingent upon award.”  For example, the deadline for applying is September 30 – 
which is also the deadline for paying the benefit.  However, the city would not know if it was awarded the 
grant until November 14.  Therein lies the risk and confusion between cities and the grantor – the state. 
 
We could pay this benefit and then find out we did not get the grant.  The Michigan Municipal League is 
working on a solution to make this grant contingent upon approval but for now we are told that time is of 
the essence because this grant is first-come, first-served. 
 
$100 million has been allotted for this program.  There is a $5 million award cap per city. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
There are 35 public safety employees that are eligible for Hazard Pay under this program.  That amounts 
to $35,000 in one time payments of $1000 to each employee.  If council decides to apply for the program, 
an application will be submitted immediately with the assurance that the city will pay this benefit on or before 
September 30.  Then the city will be notified if the money will be reimbursed through the grant on November 
14.  While there is no guarantee of that currently, the state may change its rules regarding contingencies 
before the payout deadline of Sept 30. 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING FIRST RESPONDER HAZARD PAY PREMIUMS 
GRANT (FRHPPP) APPLICATION 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, Public Safety Department has been 
notified by the Michigan Department of Treasury that it is eligible for a FRHPPP grant; and 
 
WHEREAS, the FRHPPP has allotted $100 million statewide to create a hazard pay benefit program for 
municipal first responders, fire fighters, police, and EMS employees for hazards endured during the 
COVID-19 emergency; and 
 
WHEREAS, each eligible employee may receive up to $1000; and 
  
WHEREAS, each city is eligible for up to $5 million; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso Public Safety Department employs 35 eligible employees in the police 
and fire department; and 
 
WHEREAS, the grant application deadline is September 30, 2020 on a first-come, first-served basis; and 
 
WHEREAS, the current grant approval date is November 14, 2020. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to award a $1000 one-time payment to its 35 eligible public safety 
employees for a cost to the City of Owosso of $35,000. 

 
SECOND: The City of Owosso directs city staff to submit a FRHPPP grant application and to set the 

payout date for the benefit for September 30, 2020. 
 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from the General Fund, accounts 101.300.702.100, 

100.300.702.120, and 101.335.702.100. 
 
  
 
 



Michigan Department of

^TREASURY

First Responder Hazard Pay Premiums Program

Application Packet
2020 Public Act 123

Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act,
Public Law 116-136

Application Period: July 7 - September 30, 2020

NOTE: As U.S. Department of the Treasury issues future guidance and clarifications, the specific guidelines listed in

this document ore subject to change. Changes will be addendums to this document.



Michigan Department of Treasury

First Responder Hazard Pay Premiums Program (FRHPPP)

Application Instructions

The purpose of this document is to provide guidance to eligible applicants that \would like to apply for Coronavirus Relief

Funding under the Michigan Department of Treasury's First Responder Flazard Pay Premiums Program.

To receive reimbursement, eligible applicants must revie\A/, complete, and sign this entire application packet. All pages w/ill

either be initialed or signed. Pages 1 through 15 must be returned to the Michigan Department of Treasury via email or fax,
as outlined in the document.

If you need to enter more employees than the Flazard Pay Premiums Payment Report (page 13) will allow, the data for the

remaining employees must be submitted on additional reports. An excel template can be found at
https://www.michigan.gOv/treasurv/0.4679,7-121-1751 2197-532758-,00.html

Signatures are required on pages 10 and 15. After verifying the entire application packet and reviewing all the requirements

and terms and conditions of the grant, the same person needs to initial and date each page and sign both pages 10 and 15.

The contact person on Form 5723, the signatory on that form, the page initials, and the certification at the end of the packet

must all be the same person.

Questions, contact the Michigan Department of Treasury at: Treas-CARES(5)michigan.gov or 517-335-0155.

Initial DatePage 1



Michigan Department of Treasury

First Responder Hazard Pay Premiums Program (FRHPPP)

Program Information

Program Description

The program was created by 2020 Public Act 123 to reimburse and/or pay for qualifying first responder hazard pay premiums
provided to first responders who have performed hazardous duty or work involving physical hardship related to COVID-19.

The program is funded under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act, Public Law 116-136.

Reimbursements and payments will be on a first-come, first-served basis. An application is deemed to be submitted when al l

required supporting documentation has been emailed orfaxed to the Michigan Department of Treasury.

Eligible Expenditures

Eligible hazard pay premiums must be paid to employees by September 30, 2020 to qualify for the program.

Eligible hazard pay premiums are for:
•  Law Enforcement Officers

•  Firefighters

•  Emergency Medical Technicians (EMTs)
•  Paramedics

•  9-1-1 Operators

•  Local Unit of Government Corrections Officers

•  Airport Public Safety Officers

•  Eligible personnel associated with ambulance operations licensed under section 20920 of the Public Health Code

(1978 PA 368; MCL 333.20920)

•  Private EMTs and paramedics that contract with municipalities or hospitals, if the hazard pay premiums are paid

through the applicant

Eligible Applicants

Cities

Villages

Townships

Counties

Public Airport Operators

Ambulance Operations licensed under section 20920 of the Public Health Code (1978 PA 368; MCL 333.20920)

Available Program Amount

•  $100,000,000

Maximum Available Limits

•  $1,000 per eligible employee

•  $5,000,000 to any one applicant

Page 2 Initial Date



Michigan Department of Treasury

First Responder Hazard Pay Premiums Program (FRHPPP)

Program Information

Application Period

•  July 7-September 30, 2020

Method of Submission

•  The entire application packet must be submitted, with all the required forms, signatures, and initials, to the

Michigan Department of Treasury via Email (Treas-CARESPmichigan.gov] or fax (517-335-3298) by 11:59 p.m. EST

on the last day of the application period.

Distributions

•  Payments and Reimbursements will be on a first-come, first-served basis.

•  Payments will be made no later than November 14, 2020.

Reporting Requirements

Each eligible applicant that applies for a subaward must register with the Federal System for Award Management

(SAM). For applications submitted on or before July 26, 2020 the applicant has until July 26, 2020 to register in the

SAM system. Applicants that apply after July 26, 2020, must register in the SAM system prior to sending an

application to the Michigan Department of Treasury. The SAM website is: https://www.sam.gov/SAM/.

1.

Each applicant must fully complete and return the application packet by the submission deadline with each page

dated and initialed including the completion of the following documents in the packet:

a. FRHPPP Reimbursement Request (Form 5723)

b. Hazard Pay Premiums Payment Report
c. Certification

2.

The Michigan Department of Treasury may request an applicant to submit detailed backup (including payroll reports) to

support the hazard pay premiums requested to be reimbursed/paid.  Please do not submit any detailed backup unless the

Michigan Department of Treasury requests submission from the applicant.

Contact Information

Treasury CARES Grant Programs Hotline
517-335-0155

Email Address

Treas-CARES(Si michigan.gov

Page 3 Initial Date



Report Month: June 2020

From: Building Department

To: Owosso City Council

Category Estimated Cost Permit Fee Number of Permits

ACCESSORY STRUCTURES $0 $350 8
BASEMENT WATERPROOFING $9,150 $245 1
DECK $4,100 $110 1
Electrical $0 $4,800 29
FENCE $0 $820 12
GARAGE, DETACHED $8,650 $145 1
Mechanical $0 $5,775 34
NON-RES. ADD/ALTER/REPAIR $73,000 $1,064 2
Plumbing $0 $1,395 6
PORCH $1,500 $80 1
RES. ADD/ALTER/REPAIR $95,500 $985 6
ROOF $225,680 $3,270 14
ROW-ENG $0 $60 3
ROW-UTILITY $0 $180 6
SIDING $1,000 $80 1
WINDOWS $29,110 $350 4
ZONING COMPLIANCE NEW
BUSINESS

$0 $50 1

Totals
$19,759 130$447,690

BUILDING PERMITS ONLY          -       41

2019 COMPARISON TOTALS

$758,143 $20,977June 2019 Totals 97



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

1/12Code Enforcement Activity07/02/20

JUNE 2020

ACCESSORY STRUCTURES

06/23/2020 07/07/2020ENF 20-0390 LETTER SENT 06/23/2020821 AMENT ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/04/2020ENF 20-0195 CLOSED 05/13/2020 06/18/2020916 MILWAUKEE ST LETTER SENT Y

Total Entries 2

ANIMALS

05/29/2020ENF 20-0265 CLOSED 06/01/2020 05/29/2020430 E NORTH ST REF TO CODE OFFICER N

Total Entries 1

APPLIANCES

03/04/2020ENF 20-0141 CLOSED 03/01/2020 06/16/2020720 S CHIPMAN ST LETTER SENT N

Total Entries 1

AUTO REP/JUNK VEH

06/03/2020ENF 20-0282 CLOSED 06/03/2020 06/15/2020712 N BALL ST LETTER SENT N

06/17/2020 07/13/2020ENF 20-0358 LETTER SENT 06/17/2020402 S CHIPMAN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/17/2020ENF 20-0352 CLOSED 06/17/2020 06/29/2020819 E COMSTOCK ST LETTER SENT Y

06/10/2020ENF 20-0327 LETTER SENT 06/11/2020 06/16/2020415 CORUNNA AVE COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/12/2020ENF 20-0321 NO VIOLATION 06/10/2020 06/15/2020413 CORUNNA AV CONTACT WITH OWNER Y

06/22/2020 07/06/2020ENF 20-0370 LETTER SENT 06/22/2020702 CORUNNA AV COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/29/2020 07/08/2020ENF 20-0410 LETTER SENT 06/29/2020404 N DEWEY ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/25/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0403 LETTER SENT 06/25/2020725 N DEWEY ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/24/2020 07/08/2020ENF 20-0387 LETTER SENT 06/23/2020108 N ELM ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/23/2020ENF 20-0386 COMPLIED 06/23/2020 06/30/2020607 FLETCHER ST LETTER SENT N

06/22/2020 07/06/2020ENF 20-0186 EXTENSION GRANTED 05/12/2020515 GLENWOOD AV CONTACT WITH
OCCUPANT

Y

06/29/2020 07/08/2020ENF 20-0408 LETTER SENT 06/29/2020528 GROVER ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

2/12Code Enforcement Activity07/02/20

JUNE 2020

06/29/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0413 LETTER SENT 06/29/2020719 LINGLE AV COMPLAINT LOGGED N

05/13/2020ENF 20-0193 CLOSED 05/13/2020 06/01/2020717 LYNN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/03/2020 07/13/2020ENF 20-0288 INSPECTION PENDING 06/03/20201210 MACK ST LETTER SENT N

06/29/2020 07/08/2020ENF 20-0406 LETTER SENT 06/29/2020918 E MASON ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/01/2020ENF 20-0269 NO VIOLATION 06/01/2020 06/08/2020315 MICHIGAN AV CONTACT WITH OWNER Y

06/24/2020ENF 20-0363 COMPLIED 06/18/2020 06/30/2020916 MILWAUKEE ST LETTER SENT Y

06/25/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0398 LETTER SENT 06/25/2020509 MILWAUKEE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/30/2020 07/15/2020ENF 20-0417 LETTER SENT 06/30/2020515 S PARK ST COMPLAINT LOGGED COMM

06/09/2020ENF 20-0312 CLOSED 06/09/2020 06/18/2020924 S PARK ST LETTER SENT Y

06/24/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0392 LETTER SENT 06/24/2020546 RYAN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/01/2020ENF 20-0272 CLOSED 06/01/2020 06/09/20201024 RYAN ST LETTER SENT N

06/15/2020ENF 20-0345 CLOSED 06/15/2020 06/25/2020923 S SHIAWASSEE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/25/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0400 LETTER SENT 06/25/20201007 S SHIAWASSEE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/22/2020 07/07/2020ENF 20-0309 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 06/09/2020213 E STEWART ST LETTER SENT N

Total Entries 26

BUILDING VIOL

07/01/2020 08/03/2020ENF 20-0389 LETTER SENT 06/23/2020118 S CEDAR ST COMPLAINT LOGGED VAC

06/17/2020ENF 20-0351 CLOSED 06/17/2020 06/17/2020508 E COMSTOCK ST CONTACT WITH OWNER VAC

05/11/2020ENF 20-0181 CLOSED 05/12/2020 06/30/2020835 E COMSTOCK ST CONTACT WITH OWNER N

01/03/2020ENF 19-0839 OBTAINED BLDG
PERMIT

12/02/2019 06/16/2020608 GLENWOOD AVE CONTACT WITH OWNER N

05/20/2020ENF 20-0222 CLOSED 05/20/2020 06/10/2020609 E OLIVER ST LETTER SENT Y

06/15/2020ENF 20-0340 CLOSED 06/12/2020 06/15/20201001 RYAN ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

05/28/2020ENF 20-0260 CLOSED 05/28/2020 06/29/2020409 N SAGINAW ST LETTER SENT Y



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

3/12Code Enforcement Activity07/02/20

JUNE 2020

05/28/2020ENF 20-0256 CLOSED 05/28/2020 06/29/2020413 N SAGINAW ST LETTER SENT Y

Total Entries 8

BUSHES-SIDEWALK VISIBILITY

06/24/2020ENF 20-0384 CLOSED 06/23/2020 06/24/2020315 S CHIPMAN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/24/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0393 LETTER SENT 06/24/2020540 RYAN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/24/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0383 LETTER SENT 06/23/2020546 RYAN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

Total Entries 3

DRAIN ISSUES

06/30/2020ENF 20-0382 COMPLIED 06/23/2020 06/30/2020810 GRACE ST CONTACT WITH OWNER N

06/24/2020 07/14/2020ENF 20-0391 LETTER SENT 06/23/2020739 N SAGINAW ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

Total Entries 2

EXTERIOR PAINT/SIDING

02/13/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0100 LETTER SENT 02/13/2020328 STATE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

Total Entries 1

FENCE VIOLATION

06/11/2020 07/15/2020ENF 20-0331 LETTER SENT 06/11/2020215 S CHESTNUT ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/01/2020ENF 20-0277 OBTAINED BLDG
PERMIT

06/02/2020 06/11/2020127 S CHIPMAN ST LETTER SENT N

06/03/2020 07/16/2020ENF 20-0286 LETTER SENT 06/03/20201014 CLYDE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/25/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0401 LETTER SENT 06/25/2020610 FRANKLIN AVE COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/29/2020ENF 20-0407 NO VIOLATION 06/29/2020 06/30/2020205 S OAK ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/11/2020ENF 20-0334 CLOSED 06/11/2020 06/11/2020318 E OLIVER ST REF TO BLDG OFFICIAL N

06/08/2020ENF 20-0302 CLOSED 06/08/2020 06/23/2020615 N WATER ST OBTAINED PERMIT N

Total Entries 7



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

4/12Code Enforcement Activity07/02/20

JUNE 2020

FRONT YARD PARKING

06/09/2020ENF 20-0303 CLOSED 06/08/2020 06/16/20201532 ALTURAS DR LETTER SENT N

06/15/2020ENF 20-0337 CLOSED 06/11/2020 06/25/20201007 S SHIAWASSEE ST LETTER SENT N

Total Entries 2

GARBAGE & DEBRIS

06/30/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0424 LETTER SENT 06/30/2020652 ADAMS ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/09/2020ENF 20-0308 CLOSED 06/08/2020 06/09/2020925 S BALL ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/30/2020 07/15/2020ENF 20-0419 LETTER SENT 06/30/2020303 N CEDAR ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/01/2020ENF 20-0274 CLOSED 06/02/2020 06/15/2020118 S CHIPMAN ST LETTER SENT Y

06/01/2020 07/14/2020ENF 20-0275 LETTER SENT 06/02/2020300 S CHIPMAN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/22/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0378 LETTER SENT 06/22/20201100 CLYDE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/01/2020ENF 20-0261 CLOSED 05/28/2020 06/01/2020400 CORUNNA AV REF TO CODE OFFICER COMM

06/23/2020ENF 20-0380 CLOSED 06/23/2020 06/23/2020920 GRACE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

05/27/2020 07/23/2020ENF 20-0246 LETTER SENT 05/27/2020612 GRAND AV COMPLAINT LOGGED N

03/18/2020ENF 20-0170 CLOSED 03/17/2020 06/29/2020528 GROVER ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

03/12/2020ENF 20-0158 CLOSED 03/10/2020 06/01/20201222 HERMAN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

05/28/2020 07/01/2020ENF 20-0161 2ND NOTICE SENT 03/11/2020402 HUGGINS ST LETTER SENT N

06/22/2020 07/06/2020ENF 20-0372 INSPECTION PENDING 06/22/2020944 KRUST DR COMPLAINT LOGGED N

05/21/2020ENF 20-0229 CLOSED 05/21/2020 06/01/20201619 LYNN ST LETTER SENT Y

05/27/2020ENF 20-0251 CLOSED 05/27/2020 06/09/20201011 W MAIN ST CONTACT WITH OWNER COMM

06/09/2020 07/07/2020ENF 20-0301 LETTER SENT 06/08/2020638 MARTIN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED VAC

03/09/2020ENF 20-0150 CLOSED 03/05/2020 06/29/2020918 E MASON ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

05/20/2020ENF 20-0216 CLOSED 05/19/2020 06/02/2020609 E OLIVER ST LETTER SENT Y



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

5/12Code Enforcement Activity07/02/20

JUNE 2020

06/16/2020ENF 20-0342 COMPLIED 06/12/2020 06/30/20201217 ORCHARD ST LETTER SENT N

06/11/2020ENF 20-0306 NO VIOLATION 06/08/2020 06/11/2020502 RIVER ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

06/11/2020ENF 20-0305 NO VIOLATION 06/08/2020 06/11/2020510 RIVER ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

03/12/2020ENF 20-0165 CLOSED 03/12/2020 06/24/2020514 RIVER ST COMPLAINT LOGGED VAC

03/04/2019ENF 19-0113 OBTAINED BLDG
PERMIT

03/04/2019 06/15/20201013 RYAN ST LETTER SENT N

06/30/2020 07/08/2020ENF 20-0299 INSPECTION PENDING 06/08/2020617 N WATER ST CONTACT WITH OWNER Y

Total Entries 24

GARBAGE CANS

06/22/2020ENF 20-0365 CLOSED 06/18/2020 06/29/2020609 E OLIVER ST LETTER SENT Y

Total Entries 1

GARBAGE/JUNK IN ROW

05/18/2020ENF 20-0202 CLOSED 05/14/2020 06/10/2020923 ADA ST LETTER SENT N

06/01/2020ENF 20-0276 CLOSED 06/02/2020 06/08/2020216 S CHIPMAN ST LETTER SENT N

06/01/2020ENF 20-0273 COMPLIED 06/02/2020 06/17/20201202 S CHIPMAN ST LETTER SENT N

06/29/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0415 LETTER SENT 06/29/2020502 JENNETT ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/30/2020 07/07/2020ENF 20-0428 INSPECTION PENDING 06/30/2020910 E MAIN ST STE A COMPLAINT LOGGED COMM

06/03/2020ENF 20-0284 CLOSED 06/03/2020 06/11/2020532 PINE ST LETTER SENT Y

06/29/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0414 LETTER SENT 06/29/2020924 PINE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/12/2020ENF 20-0324 CLOSED 06/10/2020 06/22/2020820 N SHIAWASSEE ST LETTER SENT N

04/28/2020ENF 20-0179 CLOSED 04/28/2020 06/11/20201601 YOUNG ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

Total Entries 9

HEALTH & SAFETY

06/10/2020ENF 20-0320 CONTACTED
PROPERTY OWNER

06/10/2020 06/10/20201291 JACKSON DR COMPLAINT LOGGED N



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

6/12Code Enforcement Activity07/02/20

JUNE 2020

06/08/2020ENF 20-0325 REF TO POLICE 06/11/2020 06/10/2020115 W KING ST REF TO BLDG OFFICIAL Y

06/10/2020ENF 20-0326 COMPLIED 06/11/2020 06/17/20201011 W MAIN ST CONTACT WITH OWNER COMM

05/14/2020ENF 19-0602 TICKET ISSUED 08/20/2019 06/17/2020821 STATE ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

Total Entries 4

LAWN MAINTENANCE

06/22/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0374 INSPECTION PENDING 06/22/2020900 ADA ST COMPLAINT LOGGED VACANT

06/22/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0211 REF TO DPW 05/18/20201260 ADAMS ST WO SUBMITTED VAC

06/02/2020ENF 20-0248 CLOSED 05/27/2020 06/02/2020406 AUBURNDALE AV INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

05/28/2020ENF 20-0254 CLOSED 05/28/2020 06/23/2020301 N BALL ST LETTER SENT Y

06/24/2020ENF 20-0362 COMPLIED 06/18/2020 06/30/2020813 BRADLEY ST LETTER SENT N

06/30/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0418 LETTER SENT 06/30/2020820 BRADLEY ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/02/2020ENF 20-0227 CLOSED 05/21/2020 06/02/2020333 N BROOKS ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

06/09/2020ENF 20-0304 CLOSED 06/08/2020 06/25/2020219 N CEDAR ST LETTER SENT VACANT
LOT

06/18/2020ENF 20-0361 CLOSED 06/18/2020 06/18/2020219 N CEDAR ST COMPLAINT LOGGED VACANT
LOT

05/27/2020ENF 20-0241 CLOSED 05/27/2020 06/01/2020313 N CEDAR ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/30/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0422 LETTER SENT 06/30/2020118 S CEDAR ST COMPLAINT LOGGED VAC

06/24/2020ENF 20-0385 CLOSED 06/23/2020 06/24/20201217 S CEDAR ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/15/2020ENF 20-0343 CLOSED 06/15/2020 06/15/20201221 N CHIPMAN ST REF TO CODE OFFICER N

06/17/2020ENF 20-0354 COMPLIED 06/17/2020 06/25/2020302 S CHIPMAN ST LETTER SENT N

06/29/2020ENF 20-0405 CLOSED 06/26/2020 06/29/2020410 S CHIPMAN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/22/2020ENF 20-0377 COMPLIED 06/22/2020 06/30/20201022 S CHIPMAN ST LETTER SENT Y

06/15/2020ENF 20-0344 COMPLIED 06/15/2020 06/25/20201026 S CHIPMAN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

7/12Code Enforcement Activity07/02/20

JUNE 2020

06/02/2020ENF 20-0237 CLOSED 05/26/2020 06/10/2020419 CLINTON ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

06/23/2020ENF 20-0381 COMPLIED 06/23/2020 06/30/2020610 CLINTON ST LETTER SENT VACANT
LOT

06/22/2020ENF 20-0376 COMPLIED 06/22/2020 06/30/2020620 CLINTON ST LETTER SENT N

06/17/2020ENF 20-0357 CLOSED 06/17/2020 07/02/2020834 E COMSTOCK ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

05/27/2020ENF 20-0230 REF TO DPW 05/21/2020 06/03/20201115 CORUNNA AVE COMPLAINT LOGGED COMM

06/10/2020ENF 20-0270 CLOSED 06/01/2020 06/10/2020102 CORUNNA AV CONTACT WITH OWNER COMM

06/30/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0427 LETTER SENT 06/30/2020732 CORUNNA AV COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/02/2020ENF 20-0244 REF TO DPW 05/27/2020 06/08/2020915 CORUNNA AV INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

06/02/2020ENF 20-0245 REF TO DPW 05/27/2020 06/10/2020918 CORUNNA AV INSPECTED PROPERTY COMM

06/25/2020 07/16/2020ENF 20-0404 LETTER SENT 06/25/2020804 N DEWEY ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/04/2020ENF 20-0298 REF TO DPW 06/04/2020 06/22/2020326 S DEWEY ST LETTER SENT Y

07/01/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0240 LETTER SENT 05/26/2020755 DIVISION ST RE-OPENED ENF N

06/02/2020ENF 20-0225 CLOSED 05/21/2020 06/05/20201406 DONALD ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

06/02/2020ENF 20-0226 CLOSED 05/21/2020 06/02/20201425 DONALD ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

06/02/2020ENF 20-0224 CLOSED 05/21/2020 06/02/2020126 ELLIOT ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

06/04/2020ENF 20-0293 CLOSED 06/04/2020 06/17/2020503 E EXCHANGE ST LETTER SENT N

06/17/2020ENF 20-0353 COMPLIED 06/17/2020 06/25/2020515 E EXCHANGE ST LETTER SENT N

06/11/2020ENF 20-0314 COMPLIED 06/10/2020 06/25/2020805 E EXCHANGE ST LETTER SENT VACANT

05/29/2020ENF 20-0263 CLOSED 05/29/2020 06/10/2020927 FLETCHER ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

06/22/2020ENF 20-0318 REF TO DPW 06/10/2020 06/22/2020720 FRAZER AV LETTER SENT N

06/30/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0420 LETTER SENT 06/30/20201224 FREDERICK ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/22/2020 07/06/2020ENF 20-0281 REF TO DPW 06/02/2020 06/22/2020305 GENESEE ST INSPECTED PROPERTY VAC



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

8/12Code Enforcement Activity07/02/20

JUNE 2020

06/02/2020ENF 20-0208 REF TO DPW 05/18/2020 06/03/2020904 GLENWOOD AV INSPECTED PROPERTY N

06/16/2020ENF 20-0350 CLOSED 06/17/2020 06/25/2020710 GRACE ST LETTER SENT N

06/02/2020ENF 20-0247 REF TO DPW 05/27/2020 06/04/2020716 GRAND AVE INSPECTED PROPERTY N

06/30/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0423 LETTER SENT 06/30/2020523 N HICKORY ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/30/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0421 LETTER SENT 06/30/2020924 KENWOOD DR COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/22/2020ENF 20-0373 COMPLIED 06/22/2020 06/30/2020318 W KING ST LETTER SENT Y

06/16/2020ENF 20-0329 CLOSED 06/11/2020 06/16/2020300 E MAIN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED COMM

06/02/2020ENF 20-0328 CLOSED 06/11/2020 06/10/2020319 E MAIN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED COMM

05/27/2020ENF 20-0250 CLOSED 05/27/2020 06/04/2020801 E MAIN ST LETTER SENT Y

06/04/2020ENF 20-0291 CLOSED 06/04/2020 06/17/2020816 E MAIN ST LETTER SENT N

06/10/2020ENF 20-0316 REF TO DPW 06/10/2020 06/30/2020300 W MAIN ST INSPECTED PROPERTY COMM
VACANT

06/17/2020ENF 20-0355 COMPLIED 06/17/2020 06/25/2020302 E MASON ST LETTER SENT Y

06/11/2020ENF 20-0332 CLOSED 06/11/2020 06/18/2020810 E MASON ST LETTER SENT VACANT
LOT

05/29/2020ENF 20-0264 CLOSED 05/29/2020 06/04/2020924 MILWAUKEE ST LETTER SENT Y

06/22/2020ENF 20-0368 COMPLIED 06/22/2020 06/30/2020302 MONROE ST LETTER SENT N

05/26/2020 07/16/2020ENF 20-0239 REF TO DPW 05/26/2020MONROE ST INSPECTED PROPERTY VACANT
LOT

06/03/2020ENF 20-0212 CLOSED 05/18/2020 06/17/2020802 W OLIVER ST COMPLAINT LOGGED VAC

06/15/2020ENF 20-0338 CLOSED 06/11/2020 06/15/2020960 N PARK ST RESOLVED N

06/02/2020ENF 20-0280 CLOSED 06/02/2020 06/15/2020917 S PARK ST LETTER SENT VAC

06/12/2020ENF 20-0323 CLOSED 06/10/2020 06/18/2020419 PRINDLE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/10/2020ENF 20-0322 CLOSED 06/10/2020 06/25/2020303 E RIDGE ST LETTER SENT N

06/02/2020ENF 20-0236 CLOSED 05/26/2020 06/02/2020721 RIVER ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

9/12Code Enforcement Activity07/02/20

JUNE 2020

06/15/2020ENF 20-0341 CLOSED 06/12/2020 06/25/20201130 S SHIAWASSEE ST LETTER SENT VAC

06/09/2020ENF 20-0307 COMPLIED 06/08/2020 06/17/20201227 W SOUTH ST CONTACT WITH OWNER VACANT
LOT

06/11/2020ENF 20-0335 CLOSED 06/11/2020 06/22/2020321 STATE ST INSPECTED PROPERTY VAC

06/03/2020ENF 20-0287 CLOSED 06/03/2020 06/15/20201115 W STEWART ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/04/2020ENF 20-0252 REF TO DPW 05/28/2020 06/04/20201002 WALNUT ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

06/24/2020ENF 20-0396 COMPLIED 06/11/2020 06/30/2020N WASHINGTON ST CONTACT WITH OWNER VACANT
LOT

06/17/2020ENF 20-0347 CLOSED 06/15/2020 06/25/20201304 WHITEHAVEN CT LETTER SENT N

06/17/2020ENF 20-0348 CLOSED 06/15/2020 06/25/20201308 WHITEHAVEN CT LETTER SENT N

06/11/2020ENF 20-0315 NO VIOLATION 06/10/2020 06/11/20201601 YOUNG ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

Total Entries 70

MULTIPLE VIOLATIONS

06/03/2020 07/16/2020ENF 20-0266 LETTER SENT 06/01/2020715 N BALL ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/22/2020 07/02/2020ENF 20-0369 LETTER SENT 06/22/2020755 BROADWAY AVE COMPLAINT LOGGED VAC

06/01/2020ENF 20-0271 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 06/01/2020 06/17/2020720 S CHIPMAN ST LETTER SENT COMM

06/30/2020 07/15/2020ENF 20-0360 LETTER SENT 06/18/2020401 E COMSTOCK ST 1 COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

05/11/2020 07/08/2020ENF 20-0182 LETTER SENT 05/11/20201210 CORUNNA AVE COMPLAINT LOGGED COMM

05/27/2020ENF 20-0249 CLOSED 05/27/2020 06/15/2020413 CORUNNA AV LETTER SENT Y

06/17/2020ENF 20-0356 REF TO BLDG OFFICIAL 06/17/2020 06/17/2020440 CORUNNA AV COMPLAINT LOGGED COMM

06/04/2020ENF 20-0292 CONTACTED
PROPERTY OWNER

06/04/2020 06/10/2020117 ELLIOT ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/22/2020 07/22/2020ENF 20-0371 CONTACTED
PROPERTY OWNER

06/22/2020611 FRAZER AV COMPLAINT LOGGED N

11/14/2019ENF 19-0789 COMPLIED 11/14/2019 06/17/2020825 KENWOOD DR CONTACT WITH
OCCUPANT

N

06/23/2020 12/20/2020ENF 19-0074 02/07/2019502 KEYTE ST INSPECTED PROPERTY VAC



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

10/12Code Enforcement Activity07/02/20

JUNE 2020

OBTAINED BLDG
PERMIT

06/03/2020ENF 20-0283 CLOSED 06/03/2020 06/10/2020202 W KING ST LETTER SENT N

06/01/2020ENF 20-0268 CLOSED 06/01/2020 07/02/2020313 N LANSING ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/22/2020ENF 20-0192 CLOSED 05/13/2020 06/25/2020707 LYNN ST LETTER SENT N

07/09/2019ENF 19-0496 CLOSED 07/09/2019 06/29/20201311 MACK ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/03/2020ENF 20-0289 CLOSED 06/03/2020 06/29/20201311 MACK ST LETTER SENT N

06/29/2020 07/08/2020ENF 20-0411 LETTER SENT 06/29/20201311 MACK ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/09/2020ENF 20-0313 CLOSED 06/09/2020 06/23/2020403 MICHIGAN AV LETTER SENT Y

06/25/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0399 LETTER SENT 06/25/2020826 MICHIGAN AV COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/25/2020ENF 20-0397 CLOSED 06/25/2020 06/29/2020513 MILWAUKEE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/08/2020ENF 20-0290 CLOSED 06/04/2020 06/08/2020318 MONROE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/30/2020 07/15/2020ENF 20-0426 LETTER SENT 06/30/2020608 OAKWOOD AV COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

02/17/2020ENF 20-0107 CLOSED 02/17/2020 06/25/20201044 PEARCE ST CONTACT WITH
OCCUPANT

N

05/22/2020ENF 20-0231 CLOSED 05/26/2020 06/24/2020514 RIVER ST COMPLAINT LOGGED VAC

06/01/2020ENF 20-0267 CONTACT WITH
RENTER

06/01/2020 06/15/2020624 RIVER ST LETTER SENT Y

06/03/2020ENF 20-0279 CLOSED 06/02/2020 06/03/2020606 RYAN ST REF TO CODE OFFICER N

06/03/2020 07/01/2020ENF 20-0285 LETTER SENT 06/03/2020608 RYAN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

03/12/2020ENF 20-0156 CLOSED 03/09/2020 06/25/2020405 W STEWART ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/29/2020 07/08/2020ENF 20-0412 LETTER SENT 06/29/2020723 W STEWART ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/24/2020ENF 20-0364 COMPLIED 06/18/2020 06/30/2020508 E WILLIAMS ST LETTER SENT N

09/16/2019ENF 19-0662 CLOSED 09/16/2019 06/16/2020530 E WILLIAMS ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

Total Entries 31

NO BUILDING PERMIT



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

11/12Code Enforcement Activity07/02/20

JUNE 2020

06/29/2020 07/15/2020ENF 20-0409 INSPECTION PENDING 06/29/20201117 N BALL ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/24/2020ENF 20-0395 OBTAINED BLDG
PERMIT

06/24/2020 07/01/2020708 CLINTON ST LETTER SENT VAC

06/22/2020 07/08/2020ENF 20-0379 LETTER SENT 06/22/20201104 CLYDE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/16/2020 07/08/2020ENF 20-0346 LETTER SENT 06/15/2020404 N DEWEY ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/22/2020ENF 20-0375 NO VIOLATION 06/22/2020 06/30/2020312 S ELM ST CONTACT WITH OWNER COMM

06/10/2020ENF 20-0319 OBTAINED BLDG
PERMIT

06/10/2020 06/12/20201344 W KING ST LETTER SENT N

06/10/2020ENF 20-0317 CLOSED 06/10/2020 06/12/2020405 W MAIN ST CONTACT WITH OWNER N

06/24/2020 07/08/2020ENF 20-0394 LETTER SENT 06/24/20201110 W MAIN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED VAC

06/26/2020ENF 20-0366 OBTAINED BLDG
PERMIT

06/18/2020 06/26/2020411 E MASON ST CONTACT WITH
CONTRACTOR

N

05/28/2020ENF 20-0258 OBTAINED BLDG
PERMIT

05/28/2020 06/01/2020221 E OLIVER ST LETTER SENT N

06/18/2020ENF 20-0359 OBTAINED BLDG
PERMIT

06/18/2020 06/18/2020621 STEVENS DR COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/16/2020ENF 20-0349 CLOSED 06/17/2020 06/23/20201400 WHITEHAVEN CT CONTACT WITH OWNER N

Total Entries 12

NO POOL PERMIT

06/19/2020ENF 20-0367 OBTAINED BLDG
PERMIT

06/19/2020 06/19/20201104 CORLETT DR COMPLAINT LOGGED N

06/02/2020ENF 20-0278 COMPLIED 06/02/2020 06/15/2020415 MAPLE AVE CONTACT WITH OWNER Y

06/25/2020 07/09/2020ENF 20-0402 LETTER SENT 06/25/2020433 E MASON ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

Total Entries 3

PLUMBING VIOLATIONS

06/23/2020ENF 20-0388 CLOSED 06/23/2020 06/23/2020603 FRAZER AV COMPLAINT LOGGED N

Total Entries 1



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

12/12Code Enforcement Activity07/02/20

JUNE 2020

REFRIGERATORS

06/15/2020ENF 20-0339 CLOSED 06/12/2020 06/15/2020656 N HICKORY ST RESOLVED N

Total Entries 1

RENTAL REGISTRATION

06/11/2020 07/11/2020ENF 20-0330 LETTER SENT 06/11/2020215 S CHESTNUT ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

Total Entries 1

ROW VIOLATIONS

02/24/2020ENF 20-0125 COMPLIED 02/25/2020 06/01/2020421 W OLIVER ST LETTER SENT N

Total Entries 1

RV/CAMPER VIOLATIONS

06/08/2020ENF 20-0300 CLOSED 06/08/2020 06/15/2020300 ROBBINS ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

06/11/2020ENF 20-0336 CLOSED 06/11/2020 06/25/2020325 STATE ST LETTER SENT N

Total Entries 2

SIGN VIOLATION

06/30/2020ENF 20-0425 CLOSED 06/30/2020 06/30/2020210 S WASHINGTON ST CONTACT WITH
BUSINESS

COMM

Total Entries 1

Total Records: 214 Total Pages: 12



JUNE 2020Monthly Inspection List

BOOTH, MARK MECHANICAL & PLUMBING INSPECTOR

Total Inspections: 28

HARRIS, JON ELECTRICAL INSPECTOR

Total Inspections: 33

HISSONG, BRAD BUILDING OFFICIAL

Total Inspections: 63

MCILMURRAY, WALT CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICIAL

Total Inspections: 105

Report Summary

Grand Total Inspections: 229



Certificates Issued by Month for 2020

TotalJan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Aug Sep Oct NovJul Dec

$525.00 $400.00 0.00 25.00 75.00 0.00 0.00 25.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

2920 4 1 1 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0

BENTLEY PARK RENTAL

$750.00 $100.00 0.00 50.00 575.00 25.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

265 0 3 0 0 17 1 0 0 0 0 0

HARMON PATRIDGE PARK RENTAL

$900.00 $250.00 425.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 25.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

228 7 3 1 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0

Rental - RENEWALS -

$200.00 $100.00 25.00 25.00 0.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

85 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0

RENTAL REGISTRATIONS - NEW -

$840.00 $0.00 0.00 0.00 840.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

10 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

RESIDENTIAL DESIGNATED PARKING

$0.00 $0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

10 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

RESIDENTIAL PARKING PERMIT

0.00 3,215.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 0.00 75.00 1,590.00 200.00 $850.00 450.00 

000002240291238 87

TOTALS:



 
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY 
 

 
202 S. WATER ST.  OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  (989) 725-0580  FAX (989)725-0528 

  
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:   2 July 2020   
 
TO:   Owosso City Council 
 
FROM:   Eric E. Cherry 
 Police Department Lieutenant 
  
RE:   June 2020 Police Reports 
 
 
 Attached are the statistics for the Police Department for June 2020.  One report 
is an offense summary for the month of June, by offense type.  The other report, 
neighborhood crime report, lists the occurred on date, case number, location, and the 
complaint type for reports in June.  The officers completed three hundred eighty-four 
(384) field interviews this month, which are calls were a full criminal report is not 
needed.  Your Owosso Police Officers arrested twenty-one (21) persons this month for 
twenty-two (22) total offenses. 
 
 For June 2020 the police handled seven hundred thirty (730) police events, thirty 
(30) were traffic stops, about one (1) percent of their work activity. 
 
 On the following page are two (2) pie charts one showing calls handled by 
Owosso City Police District, there are five (5) districts within the City of Owosso.  The 
second pie chart is calls throughout the county handled by agency. 
 
 

Respectfully, 
 
 
 

Lt. Eric E. Cherry 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 



BELOW IS A BREAKDOWN OF POLICE EVENTS HANDLED BY OWOSSO POLICE, BY DISTRICT 

 
OD1:  Owosso City District 1 (northwest, north of M-21 and west of M-52) 
OD2:  Owosso City District 2 (northeast, north of M-21 and east of M-52) 

OD3:  Owosso City District 3 (southwest, south of M-21 and west of M-52) 
OD4:  Owosso City District 4 (southeast, south of M-21 and east of M-52, excluding business district and police office) 

ODB:  Owosso City Downtown Business District 
D1:  Shiawassee County northwest district (west of M-52 and north of Hibbard Road) 
D3:  Shiawassee County northeast district (east of M-52 and north of Hibbard Road) 

Others:  Included City of Corunna’s 3 districts and any other area officer’s responded. 
BELOW IS A BREAKDOWN OF EVENTS HANDLED BY AGENCY 

 
SCSD:  Shiawassee County Sheriff’s Office          DUPD:  Durand City Police SCFD:  Shiawassee County Fire Departments 
PEPD:  Perry City Police   LAPD:  Laingsburg City Police SCAC:  Shiawassee County Animal Control 

Others: All Other Departments         SP35: Michigan State Police Post #35  OWPD:  Owosso City Police 
SCAS:  Shiawassee County Ambulance Services COPD:  Corunna City Police 911:  Shiawassee County 911 Center 

MOPD: Morrice City Police 



 
JUNE NEIGHBORHOOD CRIME REPORT 
  

  

Occurred 
Date 

Case No Location Offense 

6/3/2020 2064500689 300 block E Exchange St AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 

6/9/2020 2064500713 1000 block Ryan St AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 

6/16/2020 2064500750 400 block S Cedar St AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 

6/18/2020 2064500762 Main St/State St AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 

6/18/2020 2064500768 200 block S Michigan Ave AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 

6/20/2020 2064500780 1000 block W Beehler St AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 

6/20/2020 2064500785 600 block S Washington St AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 

6/20/2020 2064500786 600 block E Comstock St AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 

6/24/2020 2064500804 600 block S Division St AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 

6/29/2020 2064500834 600 block N Pine St AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 

6/17/2020 2064500767 1400 block S McMillan Ave BURGLARY - UNLAWFUL ENTRY (NO 
INTENT) 

6/1/2020 2064500700 600 block S Alger Ave BURGLARY -ENTRY WITHOUT FORCE (Intent 
to Commit) 

6/1/2020 2064500677 300 block N Lansing St BURGLARY -FORCED ENTRY 

6/9/2020 2064500714 1400 block W South St BURGLARY -FORCED ENTRY 

6/27/2020 2064500818 700 block S Washington St BURGLARY -FORCED ENTRY 

6/4/2020 2064500683 300 block E North St CIVIL CUSTODIES - INCAPACITATION 

6/9/2020 2064500708 1400 block W Mansfield Dr CIVIL CUSTODIES - INCAPACITATION 

6/11/2020 2064500725 800 block W King St CIVIL CUSTODIES - WALK AWAY - MENTAL 
INSTITUTE/HOSPITAL 

6/22/2020 2064500793 200 block E Williams St  CIVIL CUSTODIES - WALK AWAY - MENTAL 
INSTITUTE/HOSPITAL 

6/2/2020 2064500678 200 block E Howard St DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 

6/3/2020 2064500684 900 block N Center St DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 

6/6/2020 2064500705 100 block E Mason St DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 

6/6/2020 2064500699 600 block E Exchange St DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 

6/10/2020 2064500717 300 block N Water St DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 

6/13/2020 2064500733 300 block E Corunna Ave DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 

6/13/2020 2064500739 100 block S Washington St DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 

6/18/2020 2064500759 600 block S Woodlawn Ave DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 

6/21/2020 2064500789 1200 block S Walnut St DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 

6/28/2020 2064500832 300 block N Washington St DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 

6/28/2020 2064500827 100 block W Exchange St DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 

6/30/2020 2064500839 1000 block King St DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 

6/4/2020 2064500690 600 block N Shiawassee St DISORDERLY CONDUCT 

6/13/2020 2064500736 200 block S Michigan Ave DISORDERLY CONDUCT 

 

 



6/18/2020 2064500763 Main St/State St DISORDERLY CONDUCT 

6/24/2020 2064500801 N Hickory St/E Oliver St DISORDERLY CONDUCT 

6/27/2020 2064500822 400 block E Main St FAMILY -ABUSE/NEGLECT NONVIOLENT 

6/8/2020 2064500703 1400 block E Monroe St FRAUD 

6/26/2020 2064500833 1200 block Penbrook Dr  FRAUD 

6/2/2020 2064500658 200 block S Water St FRAUD -FALSE 
PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE GAME 

6/15/2020 2064500745 1200 block N Krust Dr FRAUD -FALSE 
PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE GAME 

6/9/2020 2064500712 700 block E King St FRAUD -WIRE FRAUD 

6/26/2020 2064500815 800 block E Corunna Ave  IMMIGRATION 

6/9/2020 2064500710 300 block E Main St  INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - FAMILY 
TROUBLE 

6/8/2020 2064500704 300 block N Washington St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 
FOUND PROP 

6/9/2020 2064500715 600 block N Washington St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 
FOUND PROP 

6/12/2020 2064500738 200 block S Water St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 
FOUND PROP 

6/16/2020 2064500747 200 block E Main St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 
FOUND PROP 

6/18/2020 2064500766 500 block W Main St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 
FOUND PROP 

6/18/2020 2064500774 200 block S Water St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 
FOUND PROP 

6/21/2020 2064500787 South St/Chipman St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 
FOUND PROP 

6/22/2020 2064500796 Main St/Water St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 
FOUND PROP 

6/23/2020 2064500799 800 block Curwood Rd INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 
FOUND PROP 

6/24/2020 2064500805 800 block E Oliver St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 
FOUND PROP 

6/27/2020 2064500821 200 block S Water St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 
FOUND PROP 

6/27/2020 2064500819 200 block S Water St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 
FOUND PROP 

6/28/2020 2064500829 200 block S Water St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 
FOUND PROP 

6/26/2020 2064500811 200 block E Main St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - OTHER 
INSPECTIONS 

6/2/2020 2064500691 1300 block W Roslyn Dr INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - 
SUSPICIOUS SITUATIONS 

6/21/2020 2064500794 200 block E Oliver St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - 



SUSPICIOUS SITUATIONS 

6/25/2020 2064500809 W Gute St/S Shiawassee St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - 
SUSPICIOUS SITUATIONS 

6/26/2020 2064500812 400 block E Grover St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - 
SUSPICIOUS SITUATIONS 

6/26/2020 2064500814 900 block E Corunna Ave INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - 
SUSPICIOUS SITUATIONS 

6/26/2020 2064500816 300 block E Exchange St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - 
SUSPICIOUS SITUATIONS 

6/11/2020 2064500807 200 block W Main St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - 
VEHICLE/VIN/SCHOOL BUS 

6/5/2020 2064500696 1000 block W Ryan St INTIMIDATION/STALKING 

6/7/2020 2064500698 200 block S Cedar St INTIMIDATION/STALKING 

6/15/2020 2064500745 1200 block N Krust Dr INTIMIDATION/STALKING 

6/20/2020 2064500786 600 block E Comstock St JUVENILE RUNAWAY 

6/11/2020 2064500728 1200 block S Shiawassee St  KIDNAPPING/ABDUCTION 

6/11/2020 2064500792 100 block N Elliott St LARCENY -OTHER 

6/12/2020 2064500729 400 block W Main St LARCENY -OTHER 

6/14/2020 2064500735 300 block N Park St LARCENY -OTHER 

6/28/2020 2064500832 300 block N Washington St LARCENY -OTHER 

6/2/2020 2064500694 400 block E Main St LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 

6/3/2020 2064500687 500 block S Garfield Ave LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 

6/6/2020 2064500697 700 block S Park St LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 

6/9/2020 2064500716 1200 block Penbrook Dr LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 

6/13/2020 2064500734 800 block S Ball St LARCENY -THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE 

6/19/2020 2064500781 700 block N Pine St LARCENY -THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE 

6/5/2020 2064500731 400 block E Comstock St LARCENY -THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE 
PARTS/ACCESSORIES 

6/9/2020 2064500722 500 block E Williams St LARCENY -THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE 
PARTS/ACCESSORIES 

6/3/2020 2064500688 800 block W Stewart St MISCELLANEOUS - ASSIST TO EMS 

6/9/2020 2064500707 800 block S Park St MISCELLANEOUS - ASSIST TO EMS 

6/14/2020 2064500740 1100 block N Chipman St MISCELLANEOUS - ASSIST TO FIRE 
DEPARTMENT 

6/17/2020 2064500753 900 block W Main St MISCELLANEOUS - ASSIST TO FIRE 
DEPARTMENT 

6/24/2020 2064500806 400 block Corunna Ave MISCELLANEOUS - ASSIST TO OTHER 
POLICE AGENCY 

6/24/2020 2064500808 N Elm St/W Main St MISCELLANEOUS - ASSIST TO OTHER 
POLICE AGENCY 

6/8/2020 2064500706 800 block W King St MISCELLANEOUS - GENERAL ASSISTANCE 

6/28/2020 2064500826 300 block E Oliver St MISCELLANEOUS - GENERAL ASSISTANCE 



6/7/2020 2064500701 100 block S Howell St MISCELLANEOUS - NATURAL DEATH 

6/10/2020 2064500724 400 block N Gilbert St MISCELLANEOUS - NATURAL DEATH 

6/17/2020 2064500752 800 block S State St MISCELLANEOUS - NATURAL DEATH 

6/7/2020 2064500773 600 block N Washington St MISCELLANEOUS - NON-CRIMINAL 

6/8/2020 2064500742 200 block S Oak St MISCELLANEOUS - NON-CRIMINAL 

6/12/2020 2064500732 300 block N Lansing St MISCELLANEOUS - NON-CRIMINAL 

6/13/2020 2064500737 400 block W Main St MISCELLANEOUS - NON-CRIMINAL 

6/15/2020 2064500743 1300 block N Ball St MISCELLANEOUS - NON-CRIMINAL 

6/17/2020 2064500755 1200 block S Shiawassee St MISCELLANEOUS - NON-CRIMINAL 

6/27/2020 2064500823 200 block S Dewey St MISCELLANEOUS - NON-CRIMINAL 

6/28/2020 2064500828 500 block E Main St MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 

6/2/2020 2064500679 1600 block W South St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/3/2020 2064500686 1400 block S Chipman St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/5/2020 2064500693 400 block E Main St  NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/8/2020 2064500702 900 block E Farr Ave NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/11/2020 2064500727 600 block E Oliver St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/14/2020 2064500758 700 block S Shiawassee St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/16/2020 2064500744 600 block E Oliver St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/17/2020 2064500756 1600 block W Stewart St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/17/2020 2064500757 200 block N Howell St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/17/2020 2064500760 100 block W King St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/17/2020 2064500761 1000 block W Ryan St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/18/2020 2064500771 400 block E Exchange St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/18/2020 2064500775 1000 block W Ryan St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/21/2020 2064500791 600 block W Main St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/21/2020 2064500788 1400 block W Main St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/22/2020 2064500797 100 block N Elliott St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/23/2020 2064500798 1200 block S Shiawassee St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/24/2020 2064500803 700 block N Washington St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/26/2020 2064500817 800 block E Mason St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/29/2020 2064500831 1200 block S Pearce St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/30/2020 2064500838 800 block S Abrey St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 

6/9/2020 2064500709 300 block Comstock St OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 

6/19/2020 2064500778 200 block E Goodhue St OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 

6/20/2020 2064500783 1000 block W Beehler St OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 

6/21/2020 2064500784 600 block N Adams St OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 

6/22/2020 2064500795 400 block E Exchange St OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 

6/28/2020 2064500824 300 block W Clinton St OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 

6/18/2020 2064500762 Main St/State St OBSTRUCTING POLICE 



6/15/2020 2064500741 E Main St/N Park St OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF 
LIQUOR OR DRUGS 

6/17/2020 2064500751 100 block S Lansing St OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF 
LIQUOR OR DRUGS 

6/18/2020 2064500764 200 block S Michigan Ave SEX OFFENSE -OTHER 

6/18/2020 2064500765 100 block E Mason St SEX OFFENSE -OTHER 

6/22/2020 2064500835 700 block W Campbell Dr SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 4TH 
DEGREE 

6/2/2020 2064500681 N Washington St/W Elizabeth 
St 

TRAFFIC - DRIVER LICENSE LAW 
VIOLATIONS 

6/28/2020 2064500825 Woodlawn Ave TRAFFIC - DRIVING ON 
SUSP/REVOKED/REFUSED LICENSE 

6/4/2020 2064500692 1200 block S Walnut St TRAFFIC - NO OPERATORS LICENSE 

6/16/2020 2064500749 600 block E Oliver St TRAFFIC - NO OPERATORS LICENSE 

6/16/2020 2064500748 W Main St/S Chipman St TRAFFIC - NO OPERATORS LICENSE 

6/17/2020 2064500760 100 block W King St TRAFFIC - OTHER HAZARDOUS VIOLATIONS 

6/17/2020 2064500760 100 block W King St TRAFFIC - RECKLESS DRIVING 

6/1/2020 2064500676 W Oliver St/N Seventh St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 

6/2/2020 2064500685 M-21/M-52 TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 

6/2/2020 2064500680 N Chipman St/W Shady Lane 
Dr 

TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 

6/9/2020 2064500711 Water St/Oliver St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 

6/10/2020 2064500723 W Stewart St/Shiawassee St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 

6/11/2020 2064500726 Main St/Shiawassee St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 

6/12/2020 2064500730 W Stewart St/S Shiawassee St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 

6/16/2020 2064500746 E Main St/S Oakwood Ave TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 

6/16/2020 2064500748 W Main St/S Chipman St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 

6/17/2020 2064500754 Main St/Brooks St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 

6/18/2020 2064500769 600 block W Main St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 

6/18/2020 2064500772 600 block N Park St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 

6/19/2020 2064500777 E Corunna Ave/S Gould Ave TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 

6/20/2020 2064500782 E Corunna Ave/S Washington 
St 

TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 

6/29/2020 2064500830 W Main St/S Ball St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 

6/30/2020 2064500837 E Main St/S Gould St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 

6/5/2020 2064500695 400 block W Main St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - NON-TRAFFIC 
ACCIDENT 

6/10/2020 2064500721 1300 block S Shiawassee St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - NON-TRAFFIC 
ACCIDENT 

6/10/2020 2064500718 300 block W Ridge St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - NON-TRAFFIC 
ACCIDENT 

6/10/2020 2064500719 200 block S Water St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - NON-TRAFFIC 



ACCIDENT 

6/21/2020 2064500790 1800 block Candlewick Ct TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - NON-TRAFFIC 
ACCIDENT 

6/24/2020 2064500802 800 block W Bradley St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - NON-TRAFFIC 
ACCIDENT 

6/23/2020 2064500800 400 block E Exchange St TRESPASS 

6/29/2020 2064500836 200 block E Main St TRESPASS 

6/27/2020 2064500820 E Main St/S Gould St VIOLATION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE 
ACT 

6/26/2020 2064500810 1000 block W Ryan St WEAPONS OFFENSE - OTHER 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Total 166   
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



JUNE OFFENSE REPORT 
 

Offense Total Offenses 

0301 - 03000 - Illegal Entry 1 

1099 - 10001 - Kidnapping ( Other) 1 

1178 - 11008 - CSC Fourth (4th) Degree - Forcible Contact 1 

1302 - 13002 - Aggravated/Felonious Assault - Family - Other Weapon 2 

1303 - 13002 - Aggravated/Felonious Assault - Family - Strong Arm 1 

1305 - 13002 - Aggravated/Felonious Assault - Non-Family - Other 
Weapon 

2 

1313 - 13001 - Assault and Battery/Simple Assault 21 

1316 - 13003 - Intimidation 2 

1396 - 13002 - Assault Less than Murder 1 

1399 - 13002 - Assault (Other) 4 

2202 - 22001 - Burglary - Forced Entry - Residence (Including Home 
Invasion) 

3 

2204 - 22002 - Burglary - No Forced Entry - Residence (Including Home 
Invasion) 

1 

2298 - 22003 - Burglary - Entering Without Permission 1 

2304 - 23006 - Larceny - Parts and Accessories from Vehicle 2 

2305 - 23005 - Larceny - Personal Property from Vehicle 2 

2308 - 23003 - Larceny - From Building (Includes library, office used by 
public, etc) 

4 

2309 - 23007 - Larceny - From Yards (Grounds surrounding a building) 2 

2399 - 23007 - Larceny (Other) 2 

2411 - 24001 - Motor Vehicle - Unauthorized Use 1 

2608 - 26005 - Fraud by Wire 1 

2609 - 26007 - Fraud - Identity Theft 2 

2677 - 26001 - Defrauding Hotels, Restaurants, Innkeeper, etc 1 

2699 - 26001 - Fraud (Other) 1 

2901 - 29000 - Damage to Property - Business Property 5 

2902 - 29000 - Damage to Property - Private Property 6 

2903 - 29000 - Damage to Property - Public Property 1 

3547 - 35001 - Methamphetamine - Possess 1 

3605 - 36004 - Indecent Exposure 2 

3806 - 38001 - Neglect Child 1 

4801 - 48000 - Resisting Officer 1 

5012 - 50000 - Probation Violation 2 

5013 - 50000 - Conditional Release Violation 2 

5070 - 50000 - Violation of Preliminary Injunctive Order (Peace Bond) 2 

 



5215 - 13003 - Threat to Bomb 1 

5299 - 52003 - Weapons Offense (Other) 1 

5311 - 53001 - Disorderly Conduct 2 

5393 - 53001 - Disorderly Conduct (Other) 2 

5707 - 57001 - Trespass (Other) 2 

7070 - 70000 - Runaway 1 

8041 - 54002 - Operating Under the Influence of Intoxicating Liquor 2 

8073 - 54003 - Traffic - Reckless Driving 1 

8180 - 54003 - Traffic - Other Hazardous Violations 1 

8271 - 54003 - Traffic - No Operators License 3 

8273 - 54003 - Traffic - Driving on Susp/Revoked/Refused License 1 

8275 - 54003 - Traffic - Driver License Law Violations 1 

9220 - 92003 - Civil Custodies - Walk Away - Mental Institute/Hospital 2 

9906 - 92002 - Civil Custodies - Incapacitation 2 

9910 - 93001 - Traffic, Non-Criminal - Accident 16 

9911 - 93002 - Traffic, Non-Criminal - Non-Traffic Accident 6 

9939 - 98002 - Inspections/Investigations - Vehicle/VIN/School Bus 1 

9941 - 98004 - Inspections/Investigations - Other Inspections 1 

9942 - 98006 - Inspections/Investigations - Family Trouble 1 

9943 - 98007 - Inspections/Investigations - Suspicious Situations 6 

9944 - 98008 - Inspections/Investigations - Lost and Found Prop 13 

9947 - 99002 - Miscellaneous - Natural Death 3 

9953 - 99008 - Miscellaneous - General Assistance 2 

9954 - 99008 - Miscellaneous - Assist to Fire Department 2 

9954 - 99009 - Miscellaneous - Non-Criminal 6 

9955 - 99008 - Miscellaneous - Assist to EMS 2 

9956 - 99008 - Miscellaneous - Assist to Other Police Agency 2 

Total 165 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



JUNE DAILY ACTIVITY REPORTS SUMMARY REPORT 
Activity Total  

Alarms 15 

Assist Another Unit 307 

Business Property Inspections 31 

Community Service 14 

Directed Patrols 192 

Original Arrests 11 

OWI Arrests 1 

Park Patrols 86 

Parking/Municipal Citations Issued 1 

Residential Property Inspections 1 

School Patrols 20 

Supplemental Complaints 40 

Traffic Accidents 12 

Traffic Citations Issued 1 

Traffic Warnings 21 

Warrant Arrests 1 

Written Complaints 579 

Total  Activities 1333 
 

 

 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 301  W.  M AI N    OW OS S O,  MI C HI GA N 4886 7 -29 58   ( 989 )  725 -0599  
  

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   July 13, 2020     
 
TO:   Owosso City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart   
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   June 2020 Fire & Ambulance Report 
 
 
 
Attached are the statistics for the Owosso Fire Department (OFD) for June 2020. The 
Owosso Fire Department responded to 262 incidents in the month of May.  
  
OFD responded to 26 fire calls and responded to 236 EMS calls.  
 
  
 
  
 

 
 

 



Custom  Jun 1, 2019  -  Jun 30, 2019 

Jun 10 Jun 24Jun 2 Jun 4 Jun 6 Jun 8 Jun 12 Jun 14 Jun 16 Jun 18 Jun 20 Jun 22 Jun 26 Jun 28 Jun 30

0

2.5

5

7.5

10

12.5

15

10. Jun 24. Jun 8. Jul 22. Jul

Week Ending 6/2/19 6/9/19 6/16/19 6/23/19 6/30/19 7/7/19 7/14/19 7/21/19 7/28/19 8/4/19 8/11/19 8/18/19 8/25/19 Total

(11) Structure
Fire 1 1 2

(30) Rescue,
emergency
medical call
(EMS), other

1 1 2

(31) Medical
assist 1 1 2

(32) Emergency
medical
service (EMS)
incident

12 67 54 63 40 236

(38) Rescue or
EMS standby 1 1

(41)
Combustible/f…
spills & leaks

2 2

(44) Electrical
wiring/equipm…
problem

1 2 3

(46) Accident,
potential
accident

2 2

(55) Public
service
assistance

1 1

(56)
Unauthorized
burning

1 1

(61)
Dispatched
and canceled
en route

1 2 3

(70) False
alarm and
false call, other

1 1

(73) System or
detector
malfunction

1 1 2

(74)
Unintentional
system/detect…
operation (no
fire)

2 2 4

Total 13 73 63 71 42 262

8%
FIRE
Percentage of Total
Incidents

92%
EMS
Percentage of Total
Incidents

262
INCIDENTS
In Selected Time Slice

30
DAYS
In Selected Time Slice

   Counts % Rows % Columns % All

   
A N A L Y T I C S

Total Record Volume by Incident Type

Page 1 of 2



Week Ending 6/2/19 6/9/19 6/16/19 6/23/19 6/30/19 7/7/19 7/14/19 7/21/19 7/28/19 8/4/19 8/11/19 8/18/19 8/25/19 Total

Page 2 of 2


	AGENDA
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
	Minutes of July 6, 2020

	PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	1. Rezoning-425 & 429 HamblinStreet
	2. Rezoning-N Washington Street
	3. Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Agreement-300 W Main

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	CONSENT AGENDA
	1. Boards & Commissions Appointment
	2. MidwestBrass&GasCarParkingPermission
	3. OMSDDA-RLFLoanFundingApproval-AppleTreeLane
	4. Warrant586

	ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	1. Waiver Of Penalty Fees-Property Transfer Affidavit
	2. First Responder Hazard Pay Premiums Program Application

	COMMUNICATIONS
	BuildingReport-June2020
	CodeEnforcementReport-June2020
	InspectionsReport-June2020
	CertificatesIssued-June2020
	PoliceReport-June2020
	FireEMSReport-June2020

	NEXT MEETING
	BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS
	ADJOURNMENT

	Reset: 
	street address of property: 
	county: 
	date of transfer: 
	location of real estate check: Off
	location of real estate: 
	purchase price of RE: 
	sellers name: 
	pin: 
	buyers name and address: 
	buyer's phone number: 
	type of transfer check: Off
	transfer other line: 
	line 11 checkbox: Off
	line 12 checkbox: Off
	amount of down payment: 
	line 14 checkbox: Off
	amount financed: 
	exemptions checkbox 0: Off
	exemptions checkbox 1: Off
	exemptions checkbox 2: Off
	exemptions checkbox 3: 
	0: Off
	1: Off

	exemptions checkbox 4: Off
	exemptions checkbox 5: Off
	exemptions checkbox 6: Off
	exemptions checkbox 7: Off
	exemptions checkbox 8: Off
	exemptions checkbox 9: Off
	exemptions checkbox 10: Off
	exemptions checkbox 11: Off
	exemptions checkbox 12: Off
	exemptions checkbox 13: Off
	exemptions checkbox 14: Off
	exemptions checkbox 15: Off
	exemptions checkbox 16: Off
	exemptions other: 
	Printed Name: 
	date of signature: 
	name and title: 
	signer daytime phone: 
	email address: 


